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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CL Educate Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (the
‘Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to
as ‘the Group’) and its associate, as listed in Annexure |, which comprise the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31 March 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India
including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its associate, as at 31 March 2021, and their consolidated
loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes
in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters
4. We draw attention to:

a) Note 57A to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, with regard to Business Transfer
Agreement with |-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer”) for the sale of infrastructure services ", -~ o
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd.)

c)

business (the “Assets”) on slump sale basis. As on date, the transaction is pending closure as the
Buyer has not been able to arrange the requisite funds to close the transactions. As detailed in
said note, the Management is also in parallel discussions with other parties to locate an alternate
buyer to give effect to the disposal of the Assets. As further stated in the said Note, the delay is
caused by the events and circumstances beyond Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited
(“CLIP")'s control and that Management remains committed to its plan to sell the assets. As a
result, CLIP continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale” as on the
halance sheet date.

Note 65 and Note 66 to the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which describes that
the group has initiated a legal action against B&S Strategy Services Private Limited ('B&S') before
the Honourable Delhi High Court for recovery of outstanding cash consideration of Rs. 400 lacs
from sale of its school business vertical. Further, as stated in the said note, the Group has
receivables from Nalanda Foundation amounting to Rs 500 lacs which are long outstanding. Based
on legal advice and its assessment of the merits of the case, the Management is of the view that
the aforesaid receivable balances are good and recoverable and hence, no adjustment is required
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group as at the balance sheet date.

Note 67 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which describes the uncertainties relating
to COVID-19 pandemic outbreak and management’s evaluation of its impact on the operations of
the Group and the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements as at the balance sheet
date, the extent of which is significantly dependent on future developments as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Key Audit Matters

5. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associate, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

6. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in
our report.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue recognition (Refer Note 2(ii) and
Note 38 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements)

We refer to the Group's significant accounting
policies in Note 2(ii) and the revenue related
disclosures in Note 38 of the consolidated
financial statements.

Revenue is a key business driver for the
Company and is therefore, susceptible to
misstatement. Revenue recognition under Ind AS
115, 'Revenue from contracts with customers'
(Ind AS 115') involves significant judgement by
the management in identification of separate
performance obligations in contracts  with
multiple performance obligations, determining

Qur audit procedures included but were not
limited to the following:

« Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
revenue recognition policy in accordance with
Ind AS 115 including evaluation of
management’s assessment of performance
obligations determined to be satisfied over
time and related method of measuring
progress towards complete satisfaction of
such performance obligation.

Chartered Accountants
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd.)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

transaction price in view of discounts offered to
the customers, allocation of such transaction
price to the identified performance obligations,
and assessing satisfaction of the performance
obligations to ensure the revenue is booked in
correct periods.

Further, for fixed price contracts, the
management assesses  progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligations
basis the pattern in which content is delivered by
the Company to the students over a period of
time.

Considering significant volume of transactions,
the materiality of amounts involved, and
significant judgements involved as above,
revenue recognition was identified as a key audit
matter for the current year audit.

- Understood, evaluated and tested the design
and operating effectiveness of key controls
implemented by the Company/ Group in
relation to revenue recognition including
discounts,

- Performed test of details for samples selected
from revenue transactions recorded during the
year by inspecting invoices and other related
supporting documents for such samples.
Further, evaluated whether the revenue has
been recognized as per the accounting policy
of the Company for such samples.

» Performed substantive analytical procedures
which included review of price, quantity and
discounts variances and month-to-month ratio
analysis based on customer level and
company level data.

« Tested the calculations related to discounts and
other supporting documents, on a test check
basis.

« Evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of
relevant disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Ind AS
115.

Loss allowance for Trade Receivables (Refer
Note 2(ii) and Note 17 to the accompanying
consolidated financial statements)

The Company has trade receivables of Rs.
5247.56 lacs as at 31 March 2021 (net of
impairment of Rs. 269.61 lacs). During the year,
the Company has recorded a charge of Rs
2,853.42 lacs towards bad debts for such trade
receivables.

Owing to the nature of operations of the
Company and related customer profiles, the
Company has significant long standing trade
receivable balances, for which appropriate loss
allowance is required to be created for expected
credit losses using simplified approach in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments, measuring the loss
allowance equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

For the purpose of expected credit loss
| assessment of trade receivables, significant

Our audit procedures included the following:

« Understanding the trade receivables process
with regards to valuation and testing of
controls designed and implemented by the
management.

-+ Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade
receivables at year end on sample basis.

« Obtained a list of outstanding receivables,
identified  significant long  outstanding
receivables, and discussed plan of recovery
with management.

« Circularized balance confirmations to a sample
of non-student trade receivables and reviewed
the reconciling items, if any.

Chartered Accountantis
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d.)

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

judgment is required by the management to
estimate the timing and amount of realisation of
these receivables basis the past history,
customer profiles, and consideration of other
internal and external sources of information,
including the impact of COVID 19 pandemic in
aforesaid estimates.

Considering the significant judgement involved,
increased complexities due to the pandemic,
high estimation uncertainty and materiality of the
amounts involved, we have identified loss
allowance on trade receivables as a key audit
matter for current year audit.

+ Verified the appropriateness of judgments
regarding provisions for trade receivables and
assess as to whether these provisions were
calculated in accordance with the Company’s
provisioning policies.

« Tested subsequent settlement of trade
receivables after the balance sheet date on a
sample basis, as applicable.

« Verified the related disclosures made in notes
to the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109.

Impairment assessment of Goodwill

Refer Note 6 to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements. The carrying amount of
goodwill pertaining to four subsidiaries as
disclosed in aforesaid note aggregate to Rs.
2 644.47 lacs as at 31 March 2021.

In accordance with Ind AS 36, Impairment of
Assets (Ind AS 36'), the Group performs an
annual impairment test of goodwill outstanding
as at reporting date. Accordingly, the Group
computes the value in use of the cash generating
units (CGUs) to which such goodwill is allocated.
Further, such CGUs have recently reported
decline in business and stress over profitability in
the recent years.

Management's assessment of the recoverable
amount of goodwill requires estimation and
judgement around identification of cash
generating units (CGUs) and assumptions used
in the determination of value-in-use for the
purpose. The principal driver of recoverable
value is the estimated growth in the operations of
the CGU and ability to generate cash profits in
the future. Other significant estimates include
expected operating, investing and finance costs,
terminal growth rates and the weighted average
cost of capital (discount rate).

Changes to assumptions could lead to material
changes in estimated recoverable amounts,
resulting in impairment of Goodwill. Complexity
involved in such assumptions and estimates
increased in the current year due to the impact of
COVID-19 pandemic outbreak on the Group’s
operations as disclosed in Note 67 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Considering the significance of the amounts
involved, and auditor attention required to test the

Our audit work included, but was not restricted to,
performing the following procedures:

. Obtained an understanding of the
management's process, and evaluated design
and tested operating effectiveness of controls
on annual impairment assessment of goodwiill

including identification of CGUs, in
accordance with Ind AS 36;
. Assessed the professional competence,

objectivity and capabilities of the specialist
used by the management for performing
required value-in-use calculations to estimate
the recoverable value of goodwill relating to
each CGU,;

. Involved our valuation specialists to assess
the appropriateness of the value-in-use
calculations used by the management and to
test reasonability of the assumptions used
therein relating to discount rates, risk
premium, industry growth rates, etc, including
the impact of COVID-19 on such assumptions;

. Tested the future business projections, used
for performing above said computation, for the
CGU from the business plans approved by the
board of directors of the relevant subsidiary
companies, and ensured its consistency with
our understanding of future business plans of
the subsidiary companies obtained through
interviews with both operating and senior
management;

Assessed operating and capital costs included
in the cash flow forecasts for consistency with
current operating costs and forecasted
business plans;

/ %/
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd.)

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

appropriateness of accounting estimate that |. Performed sensitivity analysis on

involves high estimation uncertainty and management’s calculated recoverable value

significant management judgement, this matter for key assumptions such growth rates during

has been determined to be a key audit matter for explicit period, terminal growth rate and the

the current year audit. discount rate used in the calculations
performed,;

« Tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations performed by the management
expert;

. Evaluated the adequacy and accuracy of
disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of aforesaid matter in
accordance with the requirements of the
applicable accounting standards.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

8. The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in
section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance
including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of
Directors is also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered
necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the
provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Directors /management of the companies included in the
Group and its associate company, covered under the Act, are responsible for maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have been used for the purpose -~
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10.

11.

12.

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d.)

of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and its
associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate
the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group and its associate.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)()) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls;

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities within
the Group and its associate, to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible

included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors. For the o‘the;r/

(
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont'd.)

entities included in the financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such
other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of four subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total
assets of Rs. 2094.71 lacs and net assets of Rs. 465.19 lacs as at 31 March 2021, total revenues of
Rs. 1,796.07 lacs, net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 238,57 lacs for the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements have not been audited
by us. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far
as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
are based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss (including other
comprehensive income) of Rs. 4.94 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2021, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements, in respect of one associate, whose financial statements have not
been audited by us. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the
management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, and our report
in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries
and associate, are based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according
to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial statements are not
material to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to our reliance on the
financial statements certified by the management.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 were audited
by the predecessor auditor, Haribhakti & Co LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
consolidated financial statements vide their audit report dated 29 June 2020.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred to in paragraph 16, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we

Chartered Accountants



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

20.

Independent Auditor's Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d.)

report that the Holding Company and one subsidiary company, covered under the Act, paid
remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Further, we report that six subsidiary
companies, covered under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial remuneration during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such
subsidiary companies. Further, as stated in paragraph 17, financial statements of one associate
company, covered under the Act are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the management,
and as certified by the management, such company has not paid any managerial remuneration during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not applicable in respect of such
associate company.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries
and associate, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act;

e) the one matter described in paragraph 4(c) of the Emphasis of Matters section, in our opinion, may
have an adverse impact effect on the functioning of the Group;

f)y on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory
auditors of its subsidiary companies and associate company covered under the Act, none of the
directors of the Group companies and its associate company, covered under the Act, are
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of
the Act.

g) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate company, covered under the Act,
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure 1I’; and

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the other financial
information of the subsidiaries and associate:

i the consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associate, as detailed in Note 49 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii. the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and associate, did not have any long-term

contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses

as at 31 March 2021;

/

Chartered Accountants

e =



Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d.)

there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and
associate, during the year ended 31 March 2021; and

the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes
were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016, which are not
relevant to these consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not

applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure | to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of CL Educate Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure 1
List of entities included in the Consolidated financial statements
Holding Company

1. CL Educate Limited

Subsidiaries

CL Media Private Limited

G K Publications Private Limited

Career Launcher Education Infrastructure and Services Limited

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited (step down subsidiary)

Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited

ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited

Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private Limited

Kestone CL Asia Hub Pte. Limited (step down subsidiary);

Kestone CL US Limited (step down subsidiary of Kestone Integrated Marketing Services Private
Limited); and

10.CL Educate (Africa) Limited (w.e.f 1 December 2020) (step down subsidiary of Kestone Integrated
Marketing Services Private Limited)

UG0S T R

Associate

1. Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Annexure |l

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of CL Educate Limited (the
‘Holding Company') and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as the ‘Group’), and its associate as at and for the year ended 31 March 2021, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiary companies and its associate company which are companies covered under the Act, as at
that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its
associate company, which are companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance
Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the ICAI prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by
the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraphs below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company
as aforesaid. S TAVHD

Chartared Accountants
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10.

Annexure |l to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference fo Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that fransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditor on internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary company, the Holding
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company, which are companies covered under
the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financiat controls with reference to financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

Other Matters

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it
relates to one subsidiary company, which is a company covered under the Act, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 360.01 lacs and net assets of Rs. 30.62 lacs as at 31 March
2021, total revenues of Rs. 466.68 lacs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 7.79 lacs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The internal financial
comtrols with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary company have
been audited by other auditor whose report has been furnished to us by the management and our
report on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements for the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate
company, as aforesaid, under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary
company is based solely on the report of the auditor of such company. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter with respect to our refiance on the work done by and on the report of the other
auditor.

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financiai statements in so far as it

relates to one associate company, which is a company covered under the Act, in respect of which; ==
the Group's share of net loss (including other comprehensive income) of Rs. 4.94 lacs for the year” o

ended 31 March 2021 has been considered in the consolidated financial statements. The intgrnal
financial controls with reference to financial statements of this associate company, which is a
company covered under the Act, are unaudited and our opinion under Section 143(3)i) of the Acton

adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to financial:” .. ..

Charterad Accotinlants
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of CL Educate
Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 (cont’d)

statements insofar as it relates to the aforesaid associate company, which is a company covered
under the Act, is solely based on the corresponding internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements reports certified by the management of such company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, these financial
statements are not material to the Group. Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter
with respect to our reliance on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements

report certified by the management.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's RegistraticOw No.: 001076N/N50001

v S
N d’g‘fg@q '/:‘A / “
P |9 i
Neeraj Goel
Partner A

Membership No.: 099514 ey
UDIN: 21099514AAAADT3679

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: 24 June 2021

Chartered Accountanis



CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Rupecs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Intangibles under development
Investment in associates accounted using equity method
Tiinancial assets

(i) Investments

(i) Loans

(iif) Other financial assets
Non-current tax assets (net)
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financidl assets
(i) Investments
(if) "Irade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents -
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Other financial asscts
Other current asscts

Total current assets
Disposal group - Assets held for sale
Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Lquity share capital

Lquity attributable to shareholders of the parent
Total equity

Non-controlling interest

Notes

15

16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23

24
25

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3,263.21 3,977.03
347.73 947.85
294.16 299.91
3,273.42 3,273.42
2,595.58 2,263.17
359.13 342.64
785.17 789.61
588.73 588.73
98.09 © 167.66
61.71 956.61
2,180.63 2,686.72
1,752.29 1,325.88
101.39 69.60
15,701.24 17,688.83
1,447.90 1,450.24
3,852.91 3,716.34
5,247.56 9,279.55
1,725.42 1,159.28
1,239.62 260.02
1,558.34 1,550.20
639.29 985.61
2,805.33 3,132.49
18,516.37 21,533.73
3,469.11 2,923.31
37,686.72 42,145.87
1,416.57 1,416.57
25,799.73 26,922.30
21,216.30 28,338.87
12,50 26.90

Continue to next page




CL Educate Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounts arc in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Note
s March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Continued from previous page
Liabilities
Non-current liabilitics
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 26 566.85 358.37
(i1} Tease liabilities 27 146.00 448.25
Provisions 28 588.83 562.36
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 29 9.40 3.36
Other non-current liabilities 30 108.48 71.29
Total non-current liabilities 1,419.56 1,443.63
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 31 3,276.08 3,918.08
(ii) Lease liabilities 32 115.24 435.74
(iii) T'rade payables 33
- total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises; and 944.09 802.68
- total outstanding ducs of creditoss other than micro and small enterprises 1,536.05 3,263.66
(iv) Other financial liabilities 34 1,321.84 1,361.84
Other current liabilities 35 1,822.75 2,530.08
Provisions 36 12.65 12.21
Current tax liabilites (net) 37 9.66 12.18
Total current liabilities 9,038.36 12,336.47
Total equity and liabilities 37,686.72 42,145.87
Summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes 1 to 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
‘I'his is consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.
I‘or Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Vior and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CL Educate Jamited

ICAT Fitm segigtration N(.)nmumw/Nsooma

Neeraj Goel = 3 Satya Narayanan R~ Gatitam Puri
Partner A Chairman and *—  Vice-Chairman and
Membership No.:099514 i Exccutive Director Managing Director

DIN: 0037326 DIN: 000}"5548 vi
1 / O M// J/J
N AAAL /\j S
Rachna Sharma jun Wadhwa /LA

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

ICST M. No.: A17780

Place: Gurugram, Haryana Place: New Delhi
Date: June 24, 2021 Date: Junc 24, 2021




CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

‘Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Purchases of stock-in-trade

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Employce benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense

liranchisee expenses

Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees,
exceptional item and tax

Exceptional item

Loss before share of profit/(loss) of equity accounted investees and tax
Share of loss of equity accounted investees

Loss for the year (from continuing operations)

Tax expense :

- Current tax

- Deferred tax

- Tax related to prior years

Total tax expense

Loss for the year (from continuing operations)
Profit for the year (discountinued operations)
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans
Income-tax relating to these items
Foreign Currency T'ranslation Reserve
Income-tax relating to these items

Other comprehensive income for the year

T'otal comprehensive loss for the year (comprising loss for the year and
aother comprehensive loss for the year)

Notes

38
39

40
41
42
43
44
45

46

47

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
18,449.94 30,868.33
95967 1,529.70
19,409.61 32,398.03
26917 941.34
18.82 81.06
30.54 (557.26)
3,963.97 5,303.93
563.11 830.96
835.17 1,401.50
3,574.51 7,142.51
11,629.22 18,616.91
20,884.51 33,760.95
(1,474.90) (1,362.92)
- 4,150.05
(1,474.90) (5,512.97)
(4.94) (14.71)
(1,479.84) (5,527.68)
85.70 164.30
(405.59) (317.24)
3832 49.98
(281.57) (102.96)
(1,198.27) (5,424.72)
16.23 118,92
(1,182.04) (5,305.80)
21.47 47.93
(5.38) (12.32)
37.34 9.75
(9.40) @247)
44.03 42.89
(1,138.01) (5,262.91)

Continue to next page



CL Educate Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Continued from previous page

Loss attributable from continuing operations to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling intcrests

Profit attributable from discontinuing o perations to:

Owners of the company
Non-controlling interests

Other comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the company
Non-controlling intercsts

Total comprehensive income/(loss ) for the year
Owners of the company
Non-controlling intcrests

Earnings per equity share
Basic
Diluted

Summary of significant accounting policies

— Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1,183.87) (5.434.99)
(14.40) 10.27
(1,198.27) (5,424.72)
16.23 118.92
16.23 118.92
44.03 41.68
- 1.21
44.03 42.89
(1,123.61) (5,274.39)
(14.40) 11.48
(1,138.01) (5,262.91)
48

(8.46) (38.29)
(8.46) (38.29)

1

The accompanying notes 1 to 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

"his is consolidated statement of profit and loss re ferre

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration No. 001076 /N500013

~ A
.‘N 2 *&L@{u/

Neeraj Goel

Partner o

Membership No.:099514 [Sf

Place: Gurugram, Ilaryana
Date: June 24, 2021

d to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of

CL Educate Limited

Satya Nal
Chairman and
Executive Director
DIN: 00307326

N
Rachna Sharma
Company Secretary ﬁ

TCSI M. No.: A17780 (!. ATV (o)
u.-i[ 110044 o
Datc: Junc 24, 2021 o\ 7/

.‘\‘ h

Place: New Delhi \

N\

%
~~_@Gautam Puri

\X

Vice-Chairman and
Managing Director
DIN: 00033548

/- Chief Financial Officer
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CL Educate Limired
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended Maich 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2021

Year ended
March 31, 2020

A. | Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit / (losss) before tax from:

Continuing operation (1,479.84) (5,527.68)
Discontinued operation 16.23 118.92
Loss before tax (1,463.61) (5,408.76)
Adjustment for:

Depreciation and amortisation expensc 835.17 1,401.50
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (0.98) (14.82)
Provision for slow moving inventory (43.39) 89.24
Finance costs ; 563.11 830.96
Net gain on fair value changes on current investmen:s (136.57) (341.55)
Share of profits of associates ’ 4.94 1471
Inventory written off 4.63 -
Advances written off 47.00 499.19
Rent income on investment property (11.10) (26.49)
Liability no longer required written back (352.94) (374.81)
[nterest income on security deposits (22.86) (27.20)
Employee share based payment expense - 2.16
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (net) 86.82 (63.24)
Movement in financial guarantee (3.81) 0.67
Other comprehensive income = 42.89
Interest Income . (172.55) (174.86)
Finance income on financial guarantees (1.85) -
Gain on lease modification (15.06) -
Reversal of goodwill - 71.62
Provision for expected credit loss (146.58) 235.00
Loss allowance on advances - 176.31
Impairment of investment in equity shares B 4,150.05
Bad debts written off 2,853.42 3,016.35
Operating profit before working capital changes 2,023.79 4,098.93
Movements in working capital

- (Increase)/Decrease in trade reccivables 1,238.32 276.34
- (Increase)/Decrease in inventories 41.10 (558.84)
- (Increase)/ Decrease in loans 84.29 523.43
- (Iﬂcreas-::)/Dccrcas& in financial assets 280.55 (52.22)
- (Increase)/Decrease in current & non current assets 381.95 (671.91)
- Increasc/(Decrease) in other current & nou-current liabilities (300.30) 767.18
- Increase/ (Decreasc) in Trade payables (1,586.20) (742.31)
- Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 26.91 73.65
- Increase/(Decrease) in current & non cuirent financial liabilites 0.81 (284.58)
Cash flow generated from operations 2,191.22 3,429.67
Less: Income-tax paid (net of refunds) 423,70 (476.22)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 2,614.92 2,953.45

B. | Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and inian gible assets (including (506.20) (1,263.28)
payable towards property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 89.81 81.40
Purchase of investments and associates 1.05 (65.68)
Proceeds from sale of current investments = 1,156.98
Purchase of investment of in mutual funds. = (1,905.00)
“T'erm deposits not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net) (84.70) 1,415.04
Interest received 127.01 205.00
Rent income on investment property 11.10 ) 26.49
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) A7) % Wi (361.93)| TN (ﬁm
z /& NN




CL Educare Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 Mazrch 31, 2020
Continued from previous page
C. | Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds /(repayment) of long-term borrowings 152.44 (437.43)
Repayment of short-term borrowings (net) (642.00) (532.22)
Payment of lease liabilities (618.94) (611.43)
Interest paid (578.35) (734.97)
Dividend paid including tax - (170.77)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (1,686.85) (2,486.82)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C) 566.14 118.18
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,159.28 1,041.10
Balance at the end of the year 1,725.42 1,159.28
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

~ on current account 1,405.27 1,040.27
Cheques/ drafts on hand 32.87 233
Deposits with original maturities with less than 3 months 200.00 >
Cash on hand §7.28 116.68

1,725.42 1,159.28

(ii) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities:

. Lease Non-current Current
Pakreay liabilities borrowings borrowings
Balance as at Apzil 1, 2019 1,251.36 1,291.99 4,450.30
Interest expense 122.03 : x
Cash flows (net) (489.40) (437.43) (532.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2020/ April 1, 2020 883.99 854.56 3,918.08
Interest expense 40.84 = =
Cash flows (net) (618.94) 152.44 (642.00)
Other non cash changes (44.67) . -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 261.24 1,007.00 3,276.08

There are no non-cash changes on account of effect of changes in foreign exchange rates and fair values,

(iif) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the "Indirect Method" as set out in the Ind AS - 7 on

(iv) The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjuction with the accompanying notes 1 to 66.

Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes | to 69 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

This is consolidated statement of cashflows referred to in our report of even date,
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm xegisrrati( h No. 001076N/IN500013

‘ J fg{)"ﬁ A/W - 1
Neeraj Goe! ]

Partner
Membership No.:09951+4

Place: Gurugram, Haryana
Date: June 24, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors o
CL Educate Limited /

Gautam Puri

Satya Narayan

Chairman and Vice-Chairman and
Executive Director

DIN: 00307320,

Managing Dircctor

DIN: 00033548
Va
i
Cha e

Alxiun Wadhwa
Chief Financial Office
ICSI AL No: A17780 -+ &N\

Place: New Dell{j-:“ /“‘ Xz
Date: June 24, éO?:]l .<?i4 (
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Rachna Sharma

Company Sceretary
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CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Reporting Entity

1.

(M)

CL Educate Limited (the ‘Holding Company’) is a company domiciled in India, with its registered
office situated at Plot No.9A, Sector 27A, Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana -121003 and corporate
office at A-45, Mohan Cooperative Industrial Area, Mathura Road, New Delhi - 110044. The Holding
Company was incorporated in India on April 25, 1996 to conduct various educational and consulting
programmes. The Holding Company is providing education and test preparation training programmes
which include tuitions to school students and coaching to aspirants for a variety of entrance
examinations both at the school and graduate / post graduate levels.

The Holding Company’s equity shares are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and
National Stock Exchange (NSE) in India.

The Holding Company along with its subsidiaries and its associate has been collectively hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Group’.

A. Basis of preparation.

Statement of compliance:

These consolidated financial statements (“CFS”) of the Group have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind AS”) and comply with requirements of Ind AS notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read together with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time, stipulation contained in Schedule
Il (Revised) and other pronouncements/ provisions of applicable laws.

These CFS have been prepared using the significant accounting policies and measurement basis
summarised below. These accounting policies have been used consistently throughout all periods
presented in these consolidated financial statements, unless stated otherwise

The CFS have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities
which have been measured at fair value:

| Derivative financial instruments;

ii. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

iii. Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

iv. Share based payments.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

i Expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or

iv. Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current if it satisfies any of the following conditions;. ==

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; '

i. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or




CL Educate Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All cther liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and its realisation in
cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The CFS of the Group have been presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.), which is also its functional
currency and all amounts disclosed in the consolidated financial statements and notes have been
rounded off to the nearest lacs as per the requirement of Schedule IIl to the Act, unless otherwise
stated.

B. Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company, its
subsidiaries and associate. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

a) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee);

b) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
c) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

a) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
b) The rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
c) The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights; and

d) The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of
the other voting rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until
the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances. An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence, i.e., the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but not control or joint control over those policies. Tl .

‘&

The following consolidation procedures are adopted: _ |';"' "
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Summary of significant accounting policies and explanatory information on the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 March 2021

Subsidiary:

a) Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the
acquisition date;

b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any
related goodwill; and

¢) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 ‘Income
Taxes’ applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting
from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity
holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

o Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

e Derecognises the carrying amount of any noncontrolling interests;

o Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;

e Recognises the fair value of the consideration received;

e Recognises the fair value of any investment retained;

o Recognises any surplus or deficit in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss;

o Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities

Associate:

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method, after initially being recognised at cost
in the consolidated balance sheet. When a member of the Group transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses from transactions with the associate are recognised in the CFS only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the
carrying amount of the investment.

The Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of
the associate. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of
the interest in the associate. The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown
on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group determines.whether
there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate isgppaired. If there _is’:suCh_'eviaence,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the diffeyem%n the recoyerable arﬁ’cﬂ)‘;uh‘jtkof
the associate and its carrying value, and then recognises the #ss as ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. D044 |

J
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2.

(i)

(if)

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. _

On acquisition of control over previously owned associates, the Group re-measures its previously held
equity interest in the associates at the acquisition date fair value and the difference, if any, between
the carrying amount and the fair value is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Goodwill is generally computed as the difference between the sum of consideration transferred
(measured at the fair value) the non-controlling interest (“NCI”) in the acquire and the net of the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Significant accounting policies
Fair value measurements

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value which is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between independent market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
balance sheet at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customer in an
amount that reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for-those
product or services at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally.
the transaction price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts. § ' o

The Group earns revenue from Educational and training business and sales of text books.
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Revenue from services

Revenue in respect of educational and training programme received from students is recognised in
profit and loss over the period of contract in proportion to the stage of completion of the services at
the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to the curriculum. Fee is
recorded at invoice value, net of discounts and taxes, if any.

Revenue as an agent

The Group derives its revenue from event and managed manpower services. When the Group
determines that the nature of its promise, is a performance obligation to provide the specified goods
or services itself (i.e. entity is the principal), then it recognises the revenue earned as the gross
amount of consideration. However, where the Group promise, is to arrange, for the customer to
provide goods/services as an agent then revenue is recognised only to extent of
commission/markup/charges earned by it. In such cases the Group does not control the goods and
services provided to a customer. The indicators evaluated by the Group to conclude if it is an agent
are the following:

(a) That another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract;
(b) The Group does not have any inventory risk

(c) The Group does not have discretion in establishing prices for the other party’s goods or services
and, therefore, the benefit that the Group can receive from those goods or services is limited;

(d) the Group’s consideration is in the form of a commission / service charge or markup; and

(e) the Group is not exposed to credit risk for the amount receivable from a customer in exchange
for the other party’s goods or services.

Revenue from sale of text books

Revenue from Sale of Textbooks is recognized at the point of time upon transfer of control of
promised goods to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to
receive in exchange for those goods i.e. when it is probable that the entity will receive the economic
benefits associated with the transaction and the related revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
is recognized at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the
contracted price, net of any taxes/duties and discounts considering the impact of variable
consideration,

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses and price concessions, if any, as specified in
the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

In case of test preparation services, sale of text books is recognised at the time of receipt of
payment on account of education and training program provided by the Group and is recorded net of
discounts and taxes, if any. e VL

WAL

Other operating income

W

Revenue in respect of start-up fees from franchisees is recognised on performing a contraétuéilly,
agreed assignment over a period of time, whether during a single period or over more than one /
period as per agreed terms of the franchise agreement.
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(i)

(iv)

Contract Balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Group’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting
policies of financial assets in section ix in Financial instruments.

Contract Liabilities (Unearned Revenue)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. Amounts billed
and received or recoverable prior to the reporting date for services and such services or part of such
services are to be performed after the reporting date are recorded as contract liabilities as per the
provisions of the Ind AS-115 and shown in other current liabilities.

Other income

Income from advertising is recognised on stage of completion basis as per the terms of the
agreement.

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation.

Interest income

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest
method.

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognised in profit and loss on the date on which the Group's right to receive
payment is established.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of traded goods are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of inventories is based on the first in, first out formula.

The Cost comprises all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the inventory to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The comparison of cost and net
realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis. -

Property, plant and equipment
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Measurement at recognition:

Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalisation criteria are met and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.'Any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

a) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity;
and
b) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book
value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed
standard of performance. All other expenses on existing assets, including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Consolidated Statement of
Profit and Loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value over their useful life using straight line method, and is recognised in the consolidated

Statement of Profit and Loss.

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and
comparative periods are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the

Act.

Property, plant and equipment Useful lives (in years)

Leasehold land Over lease period

Building 60

Furniture and fixtures 8-10

Plant and machinery 15

Office equipment 5

Vehicle 8-10

Computer equipment 3

Computer servers and networks 6

Leasehold improvements Lesser of 3 years or period of
lease

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from
the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant
and equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and
equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are rewewed at each financial year- end and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Reclassification to investment property
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(v)

(vi)

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is
reclassified as investment property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

Derecognition:

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-
recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds or amount of security deposit adjusted and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is de-recognised.

Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The Group depreciates building component of investment property over 60 years from the date of
original purchase on straight line basis in accordance with Schedule Il to the Act.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value is determined by an independent valuer who
holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the relevant
location and category of the investment property being valued. Investment properties are
derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of
derecognition. In determining the amount of consideration from the derecognition of investment
property the Group considers the effects of variable consideration, existence of a significant
financing component, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the buyer (if any).

Transfers are made to (or from) investment property only when there is a change in use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered
to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2021, the Group has started providing digital delivery of
products and services. Accordingly, useful life of various assets has been reassessed and reyised by
the management. The group has accounted this as a change in estimate and impact | taken
prospectively in accordance with principles of Ind AS 8"Accounting Policies, Changes in Accotinting
Estimates and Errors”. :
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Amortisation is calculated over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.

The reassessed useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Intangible assets Useful  Life (in
years)

Brand 10

Software 5

Website 5

Content development 7

Non-compete fees 3 and half

Intellectual property rights 15

CAT online module 1-3

Melting POT 10

QM 10

Aspiration Al 10

Online Video Content 5

Wain Connect 10

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising upon
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. when the
asset is derecognised.

Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and
the related expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is
incurred. Development expenditure is capitalised as part of the cost of the resulting intangible asset
only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Group intends to and has
- sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognised
in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

(vii)  Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at
their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent
liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values
irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 ‘Financial Instruments’ (‘Ind AS 109’), is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. If
the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 109, it is measured in_acecordance with
the appropriate Ind AS.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the
net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses
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(viii)

whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned
to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Income taxes

Tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in
respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961 and rules thereunder. Current income tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in OCI or in equity).

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly
in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their book bases. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxabte
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable rlght exists, to fset;
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable'
entity and the same taxation authority. . N\ : VY
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(%)

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the relevant members of the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each reporting period end and the adjusted based on
circumstances then prevailing

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the

Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent
market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded Group’s or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which
are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows
after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most
recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a
steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.
In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in
which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication
exists, the Group estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable
amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is reCogm‘sed
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset is carried at a rév-alued

amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. |- Dalni )
J {4t =2

Financial instruments
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a)

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified as follows:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost where the asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows; and contractual
terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal
and interest.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cashflows and for selling the financial assets,
where the cash flow represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). The Group has not designated any debt
instrument in this category.

Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL") is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt
instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorisation as at amortized cost or as
FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting
mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. The Group has not designated any
debt instrument in this category.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combinations’ applies are Ind AS classified as at
FVTPL. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

For all other equity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other

comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair values. The Group makes such election on

an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is.made on initial recognition ‘and is
“\\

F

irrevocable. \ =\
i

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value chahées on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised. in the OCl. There is no recycling of the
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amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Group may transfer
the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

De-recognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive the contractual cash flows from
the asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are transferred.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group measures the Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) associated with its assets based on
historical trends, industry practices and the general business environment in which it operates.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk. ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is
recognised as income/ expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the head
‘other expenses'.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

a) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term.

This category includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss, except for those attributable to changes in own credit risk, which
are recognised in OCl. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, financial liabilities designated at amortised costs are-subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gainsrand losses are recognised in Statement
of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process. A [(Us | low Delnt) Y
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Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation is included as finance costs in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
Balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date of executing a derivative contract and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair
value hedges are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss immediately, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group enters into an arrangement for lease of buildings. Such arrangements are generally for a
fixed period but may have extension or termination options. In accordance with Ind AS 116 - Leases,
at inception of the contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is
defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to control the use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether:

a) The contract involves the use of an identified asset - this may be specified explicitly or implicitly,
and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct
asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is not identified;

b) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

c) The Group assesses whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease
component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the
basis of their relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of land and buildings in which it is
a lessee, the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and
non-lease components as a single lease component.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee
The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date: The'

right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount: of the ledse
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
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direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses (unless such right of use assets fulfills the requirements of Ind AS 40 -
Investment Property and is accounted for as there under), if any and adjusted for any re-
measurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight-line
method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use
asset. Right-of-use asset are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

a) Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or
rate as at the commencement date;

¢) Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

d) The exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. It is
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero, as the case
may be.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property and
lease liabilities as a separate line item in the standalone financial statements of the Group.

The Group has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 - Leases to short-term leases of
all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of
low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately in the consolidated
Consolidated Balance sheet and measured at the lower of their carrying amounts immediately prior
to their classification as held for sale and their fair value less costs to sell. Once classified as held for
sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or amortisation. Any gain or loss arises on
remeasurement or sale is included in the consolidated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

If an entity has classified an asset (or disposal group) as held for sale, but the held-for-sale criteria
as specified in standard are no longer met, the entity shall cease to classify the asset (or dlsposal
group) as held for sale.

The Group measures a non-current asset that ceases to be classified as held for sa[e (or ceases to be
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale) at the lower of:
its carrying amount before the asset (or disposal group)was classified as held for sale ad]usted for
any depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have beeh recognised had the asset (or
disposal group) not been classified as held for sale; and| |
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b) its recoverable amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

(xiii) . Employee benefits

Contribution to provident and other funds

- Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Group has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Group recognises
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the
consolidated Balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then
excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a
reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Gratuity

Gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined using the projected unit credit method. The Group recognises termination benefit as a
liability and an expense when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the termination
benefits fall due more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, they are measured at
present value of future cash flows using the discount rate determined by reference to market yields
at the balance sheet date on government bonds.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
Other Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss on the earlier of:
»  The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
+  The date that the Group recognises related restructuring cost

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in

the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss:

- Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

» Net interest expense or income

Compensated absences

The Group treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-
term employee benefit which are computed based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method at the period end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the leave as a current liability
in the balance sheet to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for
twelve months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and contractual
right to defer the settlement for a period beyond twelve months, the balance is presented as a non-
current liability. :

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next twelve months, is treated as
short term employee benefit. The Group measures the expected cost of such “absences as the
additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the reporting date. :
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All other employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the service are
classified as short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Share-based payments

The Employee Stock Option Scheme (‘the Scheme’) provides for the grant of equity shares of the
Group to its employees. The Scheme provides that employees are granted an option to acquire
equity shares of the Group that vests in a graded manner. The options may be exercised within a
specified period. The Group uses the grant date fair value to account for its equity settled share
based payment plans granted to employee, with a corresponding increase in equity over the period
that the employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards. Compensation cost is measured
using independent valuation by Black-Scholes model. Compensation cost, if any is amortised over the
vesting perio

Foreign exchange transactions and translations

Initial recognition

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign
currency amount of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date
of transaction.

Conversion

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are
restated/translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities which are measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are
reported using the exchange rate at the date of transaction except for non-monetary item measured
at fair value which are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value is
determined.

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Group’s
monetary items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or
reported in previous financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long
term monetary assets) are recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise.

Foreign operations:

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional currency of the
Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations
are translated into INR at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the
average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand
and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
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obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the
reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present
segment information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Group’s Management
to allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance.

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management believes that such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate
within these industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services.
Further:

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to
the segment.

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for
determining the segment result. Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and not
allocable to segments are included under unallowable expenditure.

3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments is included in
unallowable income.

4, Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective
segments. Unallowable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate
to the Group as a whole and not allocable to any segment.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Group’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or ‘CODM’
within the meaning of Ind AS 108.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be
measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements. Contingent assets are only disclosed when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the entity.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings/ (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is
adjusted for events, other than conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.
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For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings/(loss) per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions are continuously evaluated and are based on
management’s experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

In particular, the Group has identified the following areas where significant judgements, estimates
and assumptions are required. Further information on each of these areas and how they impact the
various accounting policies are described below and also in the relevant notes to the financial
statements. Changes in estimates are accounted for prospectively.

i) Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against
the Group, including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature,
contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to
occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently
involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the outcome of
future events,

b) Recognition of deferred tax assets

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the
probability that future taxable income will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is
required in assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax
jurisdictions.

if) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the reporting date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group
based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market change or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Useful lives of tangible/intangible assets

The Group reviews its estimate of the useful lives of tanglble/mtanglble assets at each reportmg
date, based on the expected utility of the assets. -

b) Defined benefit obligation [
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The cost of the defined benefit plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and
future pension increases. In view of the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

c) Inventories

The Group estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most
reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The future realisation of these inventories
may be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future
selling prices.

d) Business combinations

The Group uses valuation techniques when determining the fair values of certain assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination.

e) Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

In assessing impairment, Group estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-
generating units based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them.
Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about future operating results and the
determination of a suitable discount rate.

f) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include cons1deratlons of inputs such as liquidity
risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these, f’actOrs could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. ¢

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

4, Right-of-use assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Right of use assets Total
Gross Larrying amount as on April 1, k2.01‘) 1,192.79 1,192.79
Additons during the year ' -
Reclabslﬁcafion from leasehold land (refer note _;) 186.97 186.97
Gross carrying zmount as on March 31, 2020/ Apyil 1, 2020° 1,379.76 1,379.76
Additons duting the year - -
Disposals (91.04) (91.04)
Adjustment on account of termination / modification of Jease (498.77) (498.77)
Gross carrying amount as on March 31, 2021 . 789.95 789.95
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 &
Depreciation for the year 431.91 431.91
Balance as at March 31, 2020/ April 1, 2020 431.91 431.91
Depreciation for the year : ' 14259 142.59
Adjustment on account of termination / maodification of lease (132.28) (132.28)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 442,22 442.22
Net Carry}ng amount as at March 31, 2020 947.85 947.85
347.73 347.73

Net Carrying amount as at March 31, 2021

Note :

Duting the previous year, the Group recognised right of use assets as pet Ind AS 116 "Leases" (Refer note 50)

(This space has beex intentionally lef? blank)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

5. Investment property

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cost or deemed cost
Balance at the beginning of the year 323.54 323.54
Additions during the year , y
Balance at the end of the year 323.54 323.54
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year 23.63 17.87
Depreciation for the year 5.75 5.76
Balance at the end of the year 29.38 23.63
Carrying amounts 294.16 299.91
B. Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss for investment propezty
Rental income 11.10 26.49
Profit from investment propetties before depteciation 11.10 26.49
Depreciation 5.75 5.76
Income from investment property 5.35 20.73
C. Measurement of fair value
Investment property 770.00 770.00
770.00 770.00

D. Estimation of fair values

The Group obtains independent valuations for each of its investment property by external, independent property valuers, having
appropriate recognised professional qualifications and recent expetience in the location and category of the property being valued.

Fair market value is the amount expressed in terms of money that may be reasonably be expected to be exchanged between a willing
buyer and a willing seller, with equity ot both. The valuation by the valuer assumes that Company shall continue to operate and run the

assets to have econormic utility.

Valuation technique:

Under the market compatable method (or market comparable approach), a property’s fair value is estimated based on comparable

transactions. The market comparable approach is based upon the principle of substitution under which a potential buyer

will not pay

more for the property than it will cost to buy a comparable substitute propetty. In theory, the best comparable sale would be an exact
duplicate of the subject property and would indicate, by the known selling price of the duplicate, the price for which the subject property

could be sold. The unit of compatison applied by the Company is the price per square metre (sqm).

Fair value hierarchy

The fait value measurement for the investment propetty has been categotised as a Level 2 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation

technique used.

The valuation techniques and the inputs used in the fair value measurement categorised within Level 2 of the fair value hieracchy is as

Valuation technique Obesrvable inputs
Market method '

sq. m.)

Guideline rate (Per sq. m.) Similar piece of land rate (Per

Investment property mainly consists of buildings in Mumbai & Pune. During the petiod, Company has assess that thete is no significant
change in fair value of investment propetty and accordingly company has considered the fair valuation of investment property is in

accordance with valuation report done for the year 2019-20.



CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

6. Goodwill

Reconciliation of carrying amount

Cost or deemed cost

Balance at the beginning of the yeat
Impairment charge

Total

6.1 Impairment tests for Gocedwill

Goodwill is monitored by Management at the level of operating segments identified in note 58.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group's operating divisions which 1cpresent the lowest level
mopitoted for internal management purposcs, which is not ligher than the Group’s operating segments. The aggregate carrying

segments are as follows:

a) Consumer test prep

b) Consumer publishing
<) linterprisc cotporate
d) Entetprise institational
¢) Others

6.2 Significant estimate: key assumptions used for value-in-us2

"The group tests whether goodwill has suffered any impairment on aa annual basis, The re
£ ! pLen ! !

value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow p

covering a five-year period- Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated

withi forecasts included in industry reports specific to the industry in which each CGU operates.

The following table scts out the Ley assumptions for those CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them. The values a

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3.273.42 3,273.42
3,273.42 3,273.42

within the Group at which goodwill is
amounts of goodwill zllozated ro

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

226.6 826.6

- 53381 538.81

488.2 488.2

1,351.33 1,351.33
68.48 68.48

3,273.42 3,273.42

management's assessment of future trends in the relevant industrics and have been on historical data from both external and internal sources.

coverable amount of a cash generating unit (CGU) is determined based on
rojections based on financial budgets approved by nianagement
1 below. These growth rates are consistent

ssigned vo the key assumptions iepresent

Consumer Consumer Ente:prise Enterprise '
Ma“:l_] al, 2031 test prep publishing corporate institutional bitier
Sales volume (%o annual growth ratc) 15.00% 10.00% 10.00% .15.00% 2.00%
Long term growth rate (%) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Pre-tax discount rate (%o) 16.00% 11.55% 12.00% 12.00% 10.70%
March 31, 2020 Consumer” Consumer " Enterprise Enterprisc Enterprise

test prep publishing corporate institutional " institotional
Sﬂ](_‘.;i volume (% annual growth rate) 15.00% 10.00% 10.00% C15.00% 2.00%
Long texm growth rate (%) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
TPre-tax, discount rate (%o) 16.00% 11.55% 12.00% 12.00% 10.70%

Management has determined the valucs assigned to each of the above key assumptions as follows:

Assumption Approach used to determining values
Sales volume .

Average annual growth rate over the five-year forecast period; based on past ’

performance and management’s expectations cf market development.

Long-term growth ratc:

N ‘

Pre-tax discount rates:

Retlect speciric risks relatin,

This is the weighted average growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the
budget period. The races ate consistent with forecasts included in industry reports.

i to the relevant segments and the countrics in which they opetate.

The managentent Lelieves that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions would not cause the carrying amount to ¢éxceed the recaverable amount of the

cash generating unit.
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CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts arc in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

8. Details of internally generated intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount Content Aspiraticn. Ai GATE Flix Recruitmen.t Total
- software {Scfi)
Cost or deemed cost (Gross carrying amount)
Balance as at April 1, 2019 617.21 - - 49.17 666.38
Additions during the year : 276.719 81.40 61.08 - 419.27
Balance as at March 31, 2020/April 1, 2020 894.00 | ' 81.40 61.08 49.17 1,085.65
- Additions during the year .101.37 25.98 - - 127.35
Balance as at March 31, 2021 995.37 107.38 61.08 49.17 1,213.00
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at April 1, 2019 96.80 - - 2.45 99.25
Amortisation for the year an °© 49.14 16.32 - 9.86 75.32
Dalance as at March 31, 2020/ April 1, 2020 145.94 15.32 - 12,31 174.57
Amortisatior: for the year 238.55 10.09 12.21 v.84 270.69
Balance as at March 31, 2021 384.48 26.41 12.21 22.15 445.25
Net carrying amount
As at March 31, 2020 748.06 65.08 61.08 36.86 911.08
As at March 31, 2021 610.89 80.97 48.87 27.02 767.75
9, Intangibles asscts under development
Particulars. Daas As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year . 342.064 174.45
Add: Addition during the year 420.13 342.64
Less: Capitalized during the year (403.64) (174.45)
359.13 342.64

Closing-Balance

(T'his space has been intcntionally left blawks)




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Non-current financial assets - loans

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

Note:
i. The Group's exposure to credit and cutrency risks are disclosed in note 59.

11 Other non-current financial assets

Depaosits with remaining maturity for more than 12 months from reporting
date (refer note below)

Note:
Includes deposits of Rs. 58.69 lacs (previous year: Rs. 529.73) pledged with various authorities

12 Non-current tax assets (net)

Advance tax (net of provision)

13 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets (nct) (refer note 62)

14 Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances

Prepaid expenses

(This space has been intentionatly left blank)

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
98.09 167.66
98.09 167.66
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
61.71
956.61
61.71 956.61
As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
2,180.63 2,686.72
2,180.63 2,686.72
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
1,752.29 1,325.88
1,752.29 1,325.88
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
75.78 16.00
25.61 53.60
101.39 69.60




CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts are in Rupcees Jacs, unlcss otheewise stated)

15 Inventories

Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

Raw materials

Wotk-in-progress

Tinished goods

Right to return assets (Refer note v)

Less: Provision for slow moving inventory

Note:
i. Includes raw materials lying with third parties March 31,

ii. Tncludes work-in-progress lyi

iii. Inventories are pledged as sccurities for bortowings taken from banks (tefer note 26 and 31).

iv. All inventorics categories represent text books.

v. For explanation on, Right ro return asset, Refet note 42.

16 Current investments

Unquoted at fair value thorugh profit and loss, non-trade

Investments in mutual funds (refer note below)

Aggregate amount

Details of investment in liquid 1r_p.u|uétl fund units
The balances held in liquid mutual fund as at Macch 31,

of unquoted investmert and market value thereof

2021 and March 31, 2020 are as follows:

As at As at
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
1245 27.66
- 6.39
1,419.47 1,384.61
71.99 130.99
(56.01) (99.41)
1,447.90 1,450.24
2021: Rs. 12.45 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 27.69 lacs).
ng with third partics March 31, 2021: Nil (Macch 31, 2020: Rs. 6.39 lacs)
As at Asat -
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
3,852.91 3,716.34
3,852.91 - 3,716.34
3,852.91 3,716.34

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Unit Amount Unit ~ Amount
1CICI Prudential Liquid fund DP Growth 302,450.94 921.68 302,450.94 888.55
HDFC Tiquid Lund - Direct Plan - Growth Option 21,935.48 887.40 21,935.43 856.93
U'LT Mutual Fund 17,226.08 580.60 17,226.08 559.45
ABSL Liquid I'und - Growth - Direct 283,000.2% 938.24 283,000.23 904.35
DSP Liquidity Ifund - Direct Plan - Growth 17,849.66 524.99 17,849.66 507.06
Total 642,462.39 3,852.91 642,462.39 3,716.34
Note: .

i. There are no significant restrictions on the right of owncrship,

of disposal.

17 Trade receivables

Unsccured 1

Considered good

Credit impaired

Less: Allowances for doubtfu! trade receivables

Notes:

realisability of investments or the remittance of income and proceeds

As at

As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

5,247.56 9,279.55
269.61 799.77
(269.61) __(199.17)

5,247.56 9,279.55

(i) The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in note 59.
(ii) T'rade Receivable are non-nterest bearing aad are normally received in normal operating cycle..



CL Educate Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All zmounts are in Tupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

18 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
on current account
Cheques/ drafts on hand
Deposits with original maturities of less than 3 months

Cash on hand

Note:

(i) The Group’s exposure o liquidity risks are disclosed in note 59.

19 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Unpaid dividend account- bank balance
Deposits with original maturity for more
twelve months (refer note (i) below)

.

Notes :

than mree months but remanining maturity of less than

(i) Includes deposits of Rs. 1,164.29 lacs (previous year: Rs. 220.00) pledged with various authorities

(ii) 'The Group’s exposute t0 liquidity risks are disclosed in note 59.

20 Current financial assets - loans

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposits

T.oans to employees i '
Loans to related parties

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Loans to CL USA .
Less: Provision for loss allowance

Secutity deposits
Less: Provision for loss allowance

Note:
(i) The Group’s exposute to

(i) The Group has given unsecured loan to their group companies/ partics for mecting t

same are as below:

credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 59.

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
1,405.27 1,040.27
32.87 2.33
200.00 =
87.28 116.68
1,725.42 1,159.28
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
2.56 2.56
1,227.06 257.46
1,239.62 260.02
As at As at
Mavch 31,2021  March 34, 2020
246.74 24231
5112 4741
1,260.48 1,260.48
399.49 399.49
(399.49) (399.49)
28.05
- (28.05)
1,558.34 1,550.20

heir working capital requirement, Derails of the

Entity ssime Amount given | g of interest | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
during the ycar

Career Launcher Hducation Foundation = Nil 1,219.77 1,219.77

CLEF - AP = Nil 40.71 40.71

[Total 5 1,260.48 1,260.48 |

(This space has been intentionally lft blank)

.
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(All amounts are in Rupees Jacs, unless otherwisc stated)

21 Other current financial assets
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Unsecured, considered good

Unbilled revenue

Receivable on account of sale of business (refer note 65)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Other receivables

Unsecured, considered doubtful
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Less : Provision for doubtful debts

Note:
i. The Group’s exposurc to credit and currency risks are disclosed in note 59.

22 Other current assets
Unsecured, considered good

Prepaid expenses
Advances to suppliers
Advances to employees
Advances to related parties

Balance with statutory authorities
Other advances

Note:
(i) Refer note 52 for transactions with related party

23 Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Disposal Group - Assets held for sale (refer note below)

Note :
"The assets held for sale consists of following :

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
14.16 216.27
400.00 400.00
5.23 25.76
219.90 343.58
639.29 985.61
- 0.23
- 328.03
: (328.26)
639.29 985.61
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
1,869.83 1,933.42
453.50 529.47
47.60 65.32
61.07 60.82
373.33 541.79
- 1.67
2,805.33 3,132.49
As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
3,469.11 2,923.31
3,469.11 2,923.31

(a) On March 16, 2017, the Group entered into a Business Transfer Agreement with I-Take Care Private Limited (the “Buyer’) to sell its

Infrastructure Scrvices business (the “Assets”) on the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of busine
long-term strategy to discontinue its I-12 business. As on date, the transaction is pending closure a

ss is consistent with the Group’s
s the Buyer has not been able to

arrange the requisite funds to cdose the transactions. The Management is taking approptiate action to ensure that its rights and interests

are protected. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions with other parties to locate an alternate buyer to give cffect to the disposal

of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and circumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the Management remains
committed to its plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale" in

accordance with Ind AS-105 "Non-Current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations".



CIL. Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{All amounts are in Rupecs lacs, unless otherwise stated)

(b) During the current yeat, the Group has classified frechold land amounting Rs. 518.65 lacs and Building amounting to Rs. 27.51 lacs
located at Faridabad, as assets held for sale. On July 22, 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for sale of its property situated at
[faridabad, for which the total amount of consideration is Rs. 750,00 lacs out of which Rs. 24.75 lacs has been received as an advance.
The carrying amount of the nen-current asset will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through a continuous
use. The transaction is expected to be complete prior to March 31, 2022, Thus the Group is disclosing such assets as assets held for sale
in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Nion-Current assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The carrying value of asset held for
sale as on the date of agrecement does not exceed the fair value less cost to sale and hence there is no impaizment loss to be recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

24

o]

Shave capital

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorised
16,000,000 (March 31, 2020: 16,000,000) equity shaces of s, 10 cach 1,600.00 1,600.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
14,165,678 (March 31, 2020: 14,165,678) cquity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 1,416.57 1,416.57
1,416.57 ' 141657
. Terms and rights attached to'equity shares -
Voting

Each holdet of cquity shares is entitled to one vote per share held.

Dividends
"The Hoding Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval ot the
shacholders in ensuing Annual Genezal Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

[ntetim dividend paid Nil Rs 1.00 per share

In the cvent of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity sharzs shall be entitled o reccive all of the remaining assets of the Holding

Company, after disteibution of all preferential amounts, if any. cnch distibution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shates held by the
sharcholders.

. Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 _March 31, 2020
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
Az the begim\ing/cnd of the year 14,165,678 1,416.57 14,165,678 1,416.57

. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 2020
No, of shares . Percentage No. of shares . Percentage

Promoters' Holding o
M. Gautum Puri 2,357,130 16.64% 2,310,104 16.31%
Mr. Satya Narayanan R 2,455,761 17.34% 2,327,800 16.43%
Bilakes Consulting Private Limited . 1,255,460 8.86% 1,255,460 8.86%
GPE (India) Limited 946,473 6.68% 946,473 6.67%
Sundaram Assets Management Company Limited 779,311 5.50% ’ 872,526 : 6.16%
Flowering 'I'rec Investment Management Pte. Ltd. 1,025,572 7.24% 895,772 6.32%
(along with its Pessons Acting in Concern Le. Afjuna
Tfund Pte. Ltd and Ashoka Pre. Ltd.)

8,619,707 62.26% 8,608,141 760..75%

. Aggregate number of shares issued for consideration other than cash during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date

i. The Holding Company has issued 265,604 cquity shares as fully paid up without payment being received in cash during the financial years 2015-2016 to
2019-20, all of which were issued in financial year 2015-16.

ii.The TTolding Company has issued equity shares aggregating 45,931 (March 31,2020: 74,800) of Rs.10 each fully paid up during the financial years 2015-16
to 2019-20, on exercise of options granted under the employee stock option plans wherein part consideration was teceived in form of employee services.

iii. No cquity shares lias been issucd by way of bonus shares during the finanzial years 20 15-16102020-21.




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial State;
unless otherwise stated)

meinis for the vear ended March 31, 2021

¢All amountz are in Rupees iacs,
(iif) No trade or other receivable are due from directoss o2
2 member aither jzintly or severally with oiher pesson.

other officer of the group and firms or private companies in whizh wny

disector is & partacr, a direceor or

(iv) I'radc receivablc atc pledged as sceurities for botrowings taken from banks (refer note 26 and 21).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the

(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise srated)
iv. No equity shares have been bought back by Holding ¢

2015-16 to 2020-21. .

year ended March 31, 2621

“ompany pursuant to Section 68, 69 and 70 of the Companics Act, 2013 during the financial years

e. Tor Details for share reserved for issue under the employee stock option of the Holding Company (refer to note 56).
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(All amounts are in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

Nature and purpose of reserves

25 Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
25.1 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year (3,024.99) 2,453,717
Add: loss for the year (1,167.64) (5,316.07)
Add: Other comprehensive income (net of tax)

Reneasurement of defined benefit plans 16.09 35.61
Transactions with non-controlling intercst - (70.78)
Transfer to general reserve - (140.18)
Adjustment on account of Ind AS 116 . 12.66
Balance at the end of the year (4,176.53) (3,024.99)
Balance at the beginning/end of the year 29,853.45 29,853.45
25.3 Employee stock option outstandin
Balance at the beginning of the year - 34.80
Share based expenscs 2 215
Transfer to general reserve on account of options lapsed - (36.95)
Balance at the end of the year - =
25.4 General reserves
Balance at the beginning of the year 36.96 30.60
"I'ransfer to gencral reserve - 140.18
"I'ransfer to general reserve on account of options lapsed - 36.95
Interim dividend paid duirng the year - (170.77)
Balance at the end of the year 36.96 36.96
25 5 Equity component of compound fin ncial instruments
Balance at the beginning/end cf the year 4.85 4.85
25.6 Deemed equi
Balance at the beginning of the year 51.51 33.27
Add: Addition duting the year 1.55 18.24
Balance at the end of the year 53.06 51.51
25.7 Capital reserves
Balance at the beginning/end of the year 0.20 0.20
Other comprehensive income
Foreign cusrency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 0.33 (6.95)
Add: Bxchange difference 2742 7.28
Balance at the end of the year 217.75 0.33
Total equity attributable to owners 25,799.73 26,922.30
Non-controlling interest reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 26.90 1542
Add: Addition during the year (14.40) 11.48
Balance at the end of the year 12.50 26.90
Total reserves and surplus 25,812.23 26,949.20




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts ace 1n Rupeces iacs, unless otherwise stated)
() Retained earnings
Created from proﬁt/ loss of the Company, as adjusted for distributions to owners and transfer to other reserve.
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Nature and purpose of reserves (continued from previous page)

(ii) General reserve
The Company appropriates a portion to general resetves out of the profits cithes as per the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 (fier) or voluntarily
to mect future contingencies. "The said reserve is available for payment of dividend to the sharcholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
(iii) Securities premium
Securities premium has been created upon issue of shares at premium. The reserve shall be utilised 1n accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013.
(iv) Employee stock options outstanding amount
The Company has an equity-settled share-based payment plans for certain categories of employees of the Company. Refer to Note 56 for further details on
these plans.
(v)  Foreign currency translation rescrve
The Group apptopriates a portion to general reserves out of the profits cither as per the requirements of the € Jompanies Act 2013 (Act) or voluntarily to
mect furure contingencies. The said reserve is - available for payment of dividend to the shareholders as per the provisions of the Act
(vi) Deemed equity
Deemed cquity arising out of financial guasantec teccived from its Promoters.
(vii) Capital reserve '
The capital reserve was gencrated on account of acquisition of erstwhile Paragon classes in the I'Y 2001-02.
26 Non-current borrowings
: As at As at
“March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secured loan
From banks ‘ i .
Vehicle loans (refer note i) . e ) h © 4830 ‘ 4431
Term loans (refer note if) 616.66 293.33
From financial institutions
Term loans (refer note ii) 349.28 52264
Total non-current borrowings 1,014.24 8G0.28
1,ess: Current maturities of non-cugrent borrowings (included in note 34) 440.14 49618
Less: Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (included in note 34) 7.25 573
Mon-current borrowings (as per balance sheet)
L 566.85 358.37
‘I'he Group's exposure to currency risks, liquidity risks and interest cate risks are disclosed in note 59.
i. Vehicle loans from bank
Vehicle loans from bank are secured against hypothecation of concerned vehicles. The vehicle loans from bank earry inrerzst rate in the range of 8.25% to
9,18 % per annum (31 March, 2020 : 8.25% to 9.18 % per annum). The weighted average remaining tenure forthese loans is 2.99 (31 Mazch, 2020 ;2,01
years); with a total cqual monthly installment of Rs. 1.35 lacs per month (31 March, 2020 : Rs. 1.35 lacs per month). ‘
ii. Secured Term loans from bank
a) RBL Bank-

The Holding Company had taken 2 term loan from Ratnakar Bank Limited (RBL). Year end balances of the loan is Rs. 116.66 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs.
293,33 lacs). The Holding Company has availed the moratiioum facility provided by the RBI on account of Covid 19. " .

Intcrest rate:

) These loans carry interest at 10.35%6 per anuum (March 41,2020 : 10.50% p-a.)
Repayment schedule:

{1) Thz loan is repayable in 12 equal quarierly i1stallments of Rs. 58.33 lacs (exclusive of interest). The repayment of installinents has commerce from June
30, 2018 and the last installment will be due on September 30, 2021, ‘ ’
Peimary security ; ;

() These loans together with current borrowings ate secured by subrevient chaige vy way of hyporhicntinn on all present and Tuture curreat assets inclasive
of stock and book debts and moveable fixed ussets of the Holding Corapany. . . P

(i) Lien on fixed deposit of Rs: 371.35 Lacs ( March' 31, 2020 Rs. 371.25 lacs) to be sept with Bank during the tenuee of Lbnn whizh 13
September 20, 2021 . . / = Wy e




CL Educate Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial St
(All amounts ate in Rupecs lacs, unless othenwise stated)

Collateral security:
The loan is secured by pessonal guarantees of the promoter and directors (Satyanarayan R., G
' - Lo . 1 E s

atements for the year ended March 31, 2021

autam Puri 2nd Nikhil Mahajan) of the Holding Compaay.
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26 Non-current borrowings (continued from previous page)

b) HDFC Bank

During the year, the ITolding Company has taken a term loan from HDFC Bank under Lmergency Credit line Guaranteed Scheme

(ECGLS). Year end balance of the "Term loan is Rs. 500.00 lacs (previous year : Nil)

Interest rate:
(i) These loans carry interest at 8.80% per annum

Repayment schedule:

(i) The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments after principle moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments will commence

from December 7, 2021 and the last installment will be due on November 7, 2024.

i, Secured Term loans from financial institution

During the year, the onc of the Group Companies has taken a term loan from Tata Capital. Year end balance of the Term loan is Rs. 349.28

lacs (previous yeaar : Rs, 522.64 lacs)

Interest rate:
(i) These loans carry interest at 12% per annum

Repayment schedule:

(i) ‘The loan is repayable in 36 monthly installments after principle moratorium of 12 month. The repayment of installments has commenced

and the last installment will be due on April 1, 2022

Collateral security
a. Lien on fixed deposits amounting Rs, 375.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs 375.00 lakhs) (Refer Note 11 and 19)

27 Non-current lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
T.ease liablities (cefer note 50) 146.00 448.25
146.00 448.25
28 Non-current provisions
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (refer note 51) 353.01 354,73
Compensated absences 235.82 207.63
588.83 562.36
29 Deferred tax liabilities (net)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liabilities (Refer note 62) 9.40 3.36
9.40 3.36
30 Other non-current liabilities
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unearned revenue 108.48 71.29
108.48 71.29

(This space has been infentionally left blank )
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31  Current borrowings

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Secured '
- Tirom banks
- Cash credit (Refer note i below) 3,262.24 3,915.87
Unsecured
- From others (Refer note ii below) 13.84 221
3,276.08 3,918.08

‘I'he Group's exposure to cutrercy risks, liquidicy risks and interest rate risks are disclosed in note 59.

Notes:

(i) Details of these loans arc as follcws:

During the year, cash credit represents overdialt from HOFC and ICICT bank taken by [olding Company and from Induslnd bank Ly
Group Compzny's respectively, which ate repyable on demand.

(a) Details of loan taken frem HDFC Banl
"I'he Holding Campany had catercd into a finance facility agecement with limit amounting Rs. 3,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2020 :Rs. 3,000.00
lacs) with TIDFC Bank Limited comprising of Rs. 750,00 lacs as an overd raft facility & Rs. 2,250.00 lacs as a dropline overdraft facility.

Interest rate
Thesc loans carry interest at bank's base rate + 3.75% (March 31, 2020: bank's bese rate + 3.75%) per annum ranging [rom 9.95%.

Security
‘These borrowings are sceured by way of first and exclusive charge on all present and future current and moveable aszets including moveable
fixed assets of the Holding Company-
"The Borrowing are further secured by equitable mortgage on following propertics of the Holding Company:
_Plot No. 15-A, Block 11, Knowledge P'ark, Greater Noida
- Plot No. 24, Sector 27-A, Faridabad
- Office space No. 1 and 2, Third Floor, FC Road, Shivaji Nagar, Punc
- Uait No. 207, Second Floor; District Centre, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi

The Borro wing are further secured by personal guarantecs of the promoter and dircetors (Satyanarayan R., Gautam Puri and Nikhil Mahajan)
of the Tolding Company. "

(b) Details of loan taken from ICICI Bank S : o

The Group had entered into a-overdraft facility for LAS account with limit amounting Rs.1,000.00 lacs (March 31, 2020 : Rs.1,000.00 lacs)
with ICICI Bank Limited.

Interest rate . ;

“T'hese facility carry intecest at bank's base rate + 0.20% (March 31, 2020: bani's base rate + 0.20%) per annum.

Security

"The facility is secured by the Mutual Funds taken by the Holding Company.

(c) Details of loan taken flom indusInd bank

Interest rates

a. The facilityavailed carries an interest sate of 1 1.59% (March 31,2020 : 11.50%) per annum.

Security - :

a. Lica on fixed deposics amounting Rs. 370.00 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs 370.00 lakhs)

b. Tirst and cxclusive charge on movable fixed asscts of the Holdinng Company both present and future.

(ii) Details of unsecured loans
Loan represents the unsecured loan taken from Phocnix Academy at an interest rate of 11.50% per annum. The said loan is rzpayable on
demand. '

32  Current lease liabilities

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Leasc liablities (refer note 50) : 115.24 435.74

11524 435.74
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33 ‘Trade payables

34

35

36

37

"I'rade payables
 total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Note:
i. Refer note 54 for dues to micro and small enterprises.

i, The Group's exposurc to currency and liquidicy risks related to trade payables are disclosed in note 59.

i, Other creditors are non interest bearing and are rormally settled in normal teade cycle,

Other current financial liabilities

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (r=fer note 26)
Interest accrued but not duc on borrowings

Security deposit received

Advance received on behalf of other

Unpaid dividends

Fmployec relared payables

Payable to sclling sharcholders

Note:

i. The Group's exposurc to currency sisks, liquidity risks and interest rate risks are disciosed in note 59.

Other current liabilities

Unearned revenue

Statutory dues payable .

Advance againsr sale of business undertaking (stamp sale) (refer note 23)
Refund liablity created against right to returm

Others '

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Grataity (refer note 51)
Compensated absences

Current tax_h'ahiﬁtie.s

Provision for income-tax (net of advance tax)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
944,09 802.68
1,536.05 3,263.60
2,480.14 4,066.34
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
440.14 496.19
7.25 5.73
- 5.00
83.86 12.89
2.56 256
759.97 311.41
28.06 28.06
1,321.84 1,361.84
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,270.81 1,902.72
25852 24403
135.13 110.38
89.99 195.12
656.30 70.23
1,822.75 2,530.08
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
542 5.82
7.23 £.39
10.65_ 1221
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
9.66 12,18
9.66 12.18
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38 Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Sale of products:

T'ext books 1,466.41 2,840.09
Sale of services:

Fducation and training programmes 8,333.43 14,396.83

Fvent management services income 7,562.10 11,535.06
Other cperating revenus

Start up fecs from franchisces 219.05 344,32,

Adveriising income 845.70 1,715.90

Scrap sales 23.25 6.93

Infrastructurc fees - ! ‘ - 29.20

18,449.94 30,868.33

Disaggregated revenus information as per geographical markets

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Geographical markets

Particulars India Overseas Total

Tiducation and training programmes 8,016.22 317.21 8,333.43
Sale of text beoks 1,203.79 262.62 1,466.41
Income from advertisement scrvices 845,70 - 845.70
Fvents 5,283.01 832.87 4,165.88
Digilal 2,062,76 10.09 2,072.85
Manpower management services 1,286.13 37.24 1.323.37
Start up fees : 219.05 - 219.05
Scrap sales _ 23.25 -l 23,25

16,939.91 1,510.03 18,449.04

For the year ended March 31, 2020
Geographical markets

Particulars India Overseas Total
Tducation and training programmes 14,004.74 392,08 14,396.82
Sale of text books 2,413.28 426.82 2,840.10
Tncome from advertisement secvices 1,715.90 R 1,715.90
Bt 5,729.69 1,508.12 7,237.81
Digjtal - 2,800.70 60.71 2,861.41
Manpower management scrvices 1,435.84 - |’435.34
Start up fees 344.32 S 344,32
Scrap sales - 6.93 - 6.93
Infrastructure fee ' 29.20 ’ . 2920

' 28,480.60 2,387.73 30,868.33
Changes in contract liablity are as follows:- Year ended Year cuded

] March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,981.01 1,492.16
Revenue recognised that was deducted fiom trade reccivables as uneamed revenue (1,950.17) (1,211.50)

balance at the beginning of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year,excluding amount recognised as revenue during 1,693.75 1,809.31
Reclassification of unearned revenue that is not yet collected in cash (335.30) (108.96
from trade reccivables

Balance at the end of the year 1,379.29 1,981.01
Note :

Opening balance of contract liability is inglusive of unearned revenue not yct collected cash from trade receivable.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining pecfozmince obligations (unsatisfied or Year euded Year ended

partially unsatisfied) ) March 31,2021, March 21,2020
Within one year 1,617.50 2,018.68

More than one year 97.09 71.29
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38 Revenue from operations (continued from previous page)

Year ended Year ended
Changes in contract assets are as follows:- March 31 , 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,495.82 13;725.92

Revenue recognised that was deducted from trade reccivable as unearned revenue (9,495.82) (13,725.92)
balance at the beginning of the year

Increase due to invoicing during the year, Excluding amount recognised as revenue 5,531.33 10,286.82
during the year

Credit impaired (269.61) (791.00)
Revenue not recognised that was deducted from trade receivable as unearned revenue

balance at the end of the year

Balance at the end of the year 5,261,72 9,495.82

II. Revenue as an agent
The Group is involved in marketing and sale services. Such activitics interalia involves, working at times, as an agent of the customers for certain
events or for certain activities in an event. For example the customer at times request for collection of registration fees for the event, which is
collected by the Holding Company and paid to the customers. In such cases normally there are, cither the related event revenue or normal
fees/commission. In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the fees/commission in accordance with para
34 to 38 of Ind AS 115. During the financial year 2020-21 the details of the collectable amount on behalf of the customers are detailed as under.
Such amount is generally paid as and when collected and balance if any is disclosed under “Receipts on behalf of clients” as other current

financial liability.

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount collected /collectable on behalf of various customers 808.74 334.77

Amount of fees/commission/rclated charges forming part of the revenue for the year 26.21 29.21

"T'he Group is involved in marketing and sale services. Such activities interalia involves, working at times, as agent of the customers for certain
events or for certain activities in an event, For example the customer at times request for payment to various vendors for the services rendered to
them, which is paid by the Holding Company to various vendors and collected from customers. In such cases normally there are, cither the
celated event revenue or normal fees/commission. In such case the revenue disclosed in the financials includes only the amount of the
fees/commission in accordance with para 34 to 38 of Ind As 115. During the financial year 2020-21 the details of the amount paid/ payable on
behalf of the customers arc detailed as under. Such amount is generally collected from client as and when paid and balance if any is disclosed
under “Trade Receivable” as current financial assets.

Particulars : Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Amount paid/payable on behalf of various customers during the year - 592.28

Amount of fees/commission/related charges forming part of the revenue for the year - 63.43

(1his space bas been intentionallt kfi blantk)
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39 Other income

Tnterest income from finangial assers measured ac amortised cost

- Security deposits
- lixed deposits
- Tncome tax refunds
- Others
Gain on fair value change of current investment
Gain on sale of mutual funds
Liabilities no longer required written back
TRent income on investment property (refer note 5)

Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation

-Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance income on financial guarantees

Gain on modification and terminaticn of leases
Faculty service charges income

Reversal of provision for expected credit losses
Reversal of provision for slow-moving inventory
Excess provisions written back

Misce!lancous income

40 Cost of materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases during the year (Refer note 1)
Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Sub-total (A)

Printing cost

Binding and cover pastung charges
Packing material consumed
Contentediting ard typing charges
Sub-total (B)

Total (A+B)

Notes:
(i) Details of purchases are as follows:
Paper

Lamination material

41 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Text books

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
22.86 27.20
104.52 146.81
64.33 75.84
37 28.05
136.57 116.31
= 225.23
352.94 374.56
11.10 26,48
- 57.67
1.40 14.82
1.85 -
15.06 =
® 11.36
167.56 340.96
43.39
- 3.63
34.38 8u.7Y
959,67 1,529.70
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
27.66 19.61
93.06 392.73
{12.45) (27.66)
108.27 381.68
160.90 551.01
- 373
- 0.76
- 122
160.90 556.00
269.17 011,34
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
93.06 391.18
= 1.55
93.06 392.73
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 202i March 31, 2020
18.62 8§1.06
13.82 T RLus
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42

43

44

45

Changes in inventorics of stock in trade

Inventories at the end of the year
-Finished goods

-Work-in-progress

~Tmpact of Right to return assets

Total

Inventorics at the beginning of the year
-Fimished goods

-Work-in-progress

-Impact of Right to return assers

Total .
Net decrease/(increase) in inventories of finished goods

Note:
Right to return assets indicates the cost component of expected teturns recognised.

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 51)
lixpenses related to compensated absences (refer note 51)

Share-based payment to employees (refer note 51)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings measured af amortised costs
Interest on delayed payment of statutory dues

Interest expense on lease liabilities (refer note 50)

linance cost on financial guarantees

Other borrowing costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 7

Depreciation on investment property (refer note 5)
Depreciation on Right-of-use of assets (refer note 4)

(This ;j.)m'r hhas been intentionallt left blunk)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,419.47 1,384.62
- 6.39
71.99 130.99
1,491.46 1,522.00
1,384.62 767.45
6.39 6,69
130.99 190.59
1,522.00 964.74
30.54 (557.26)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
3,551.00 4,770.57
187.25 22522
83.14 100.54
59.96 47.16
5 216
82.62 158.28
3,963.97 5,303.93
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
479.78 661.54
591 9.25
40.84 122,03
12.60 14.84
23.98 23.30
563.11 830.96
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
21991 297.30
466.92 G66.53
5.75 5.76
142.59 431.91
835.17 1,401,50
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46 Other expenses

Giveaways

livent consultancy

Banquet and hotel expense

Faculty expenses

Rent (refer note 50)

Bad debts written off

Advertisement and publicity espense

Business promotion

Digital marketing expenses

Legal and professional charges (refer note i below)
Travelling and conveyance

Office expenses

Liquipment hire expenses

Communication expenses

T'emporary manpower resources

Digital Leacning support expenses

Repairs to:

-Buildings

-Others

Material printing cost

Loans & Advances written-off

Provision for expected credit Joss

Provision for obsolete inventory

Rates and taxes

Freight and cartage outward

Sponsorship fecs

Foreign exchange loss (net)

Insurance

Vocational Business Servicing Costs
Commission to non exceutive directors
Recruitment, training and devclopment expenses
Photography charges

Sponsorship fees

Sales incentive

Inventory written off

Corporate Social Responsibility (refer note 53)
Loss on sale of praperty, plant and equipm‘enr
Loss allowance on advances

Miscellancous expenses

Note:
(i) Payment to auditors (excluding GST)

Statutory audit
Other services
Out of pocket expenses

(This spare bas been intentionalit Left blank)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1,732.67 1,887.65
1,669.53 2,917.14
33.72 1,368.13
293.92 860.11
323.65 455.05
2.853.42 3,016.35
240.52 880.96
567.63 757.75
566.59 279.47
511.42 565.67
98.14 263.66
499.10 78717
87.16 1,098.55
194.49 308,95
697.51 653.88
224.20 119.83
19.83 68.69
57.49 150.62
37.08 173.97
47.00 499,19
20.98 235.00
- 89.24
221.56 118.09
23.08 95.50
12.90 62.40
86.82 5.82
60.96 95.14
313 74.49
12.33 13.45
- 56.25
0.45 47.43
- 32.90
56.58 89.45

4.63 =
80.94 4.40

0.42 “
- 176.37
289,37 308.19
11,629,22 18,616.91

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

49.00 27.00
14.40 18.00
.85 237
64.25 47.37

NEW DELHI

110044
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47 Exceptional ltem

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Ba&S Strategy Services Private Limited (Refer note below) - 4,150.05
- 4,150.05

Notes:

During the Y 2017-18, the Group entered into an agreement with B&S Strategy Services Private Limited (B&S), an associate, to manage its
School Busimess vertical (IK 12 Business). The Group holds a 44.18% in equity share of B&S at an investment amounting to Rs. 4,745 lacs.
lurther, an overdue amount of Rs. 400.00 lacs s recoverable by Group from B&S towards cash consideration as per aforesaid agreement.

Over the period, the numbers of admissions have declined in the school and with insufficient cash being generated by the business,the
Management did not miend w0 make furthee m\‘u.\‘unums;'l'hu siuation has been accentuated by the on set of COVID-19, foreing schools to shut
carly and the present management failing to colleet final term fees of FY'20 and for the first guarter of the new Academic Year. In view of the
afore said factors and based on an independent valuers’ report, CLEIS fair valued its investment in B&S at Rs. 595 lacs as at March 31, 2020
there by resulting in an impairment of Rs. 4,150.05 lacs.

Based on the impairment testing performed, the Group has recognised impairment loss of Rs. 4,150.05 lacs on its investment in B&S and has
disclosed it as an exceptional item.

48 Earnings per share

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) Basic earnings per share

I'rom continuing operations attributable to the equity holders (8.46) (38.29)
From discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders 0.11 0.84
(b) Diluted earnings per share

I'rom continuing operations attributable to the equity holders (8.46) (38.29)
I'rom discontinuing operations attributable to the equity holders 0.11 0.84

(¢) Reconciliations of earnings used in calculating ehrnings per share

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in caleulating basic earnings per share:

l'rom continuing operations . (1,198.27) (5,424.72)
I'rom discontinuing operations 16.23 118.92

Diluted earnings per share :
From continuing operations (1,198.27) (5,424.72)

I‘rom discontinuing operations 16.23 118.92
No of shares No of shares

(d) Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator
Weighted average number of equity shares used as the denominator in caleulating

basic and diluted earnings per share 141,656,780 141,656,780

(¢) Information concerning the classification of securitics
Options: Options granted to employees are considered to be potential equity shares. They have been included in the determination of diluted
earnings per share to the extent to which they are dilutive. The options have not been included in the determination of basic carnings per share.

No stock options were outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year. S Jb\ T E‘
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Contingent liabilities, commitments and litigations

Commitments As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account 10.95 R

. and not provided for (net of advances) i

10.95 -

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts (refer note a) 1,870.01 1,788.48
1,870.01 1,788.48

Note a: Details of claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts

Service tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 755.09 755.09
Income-tax matters Matters in dispute/under appeal for various years 1,015.84 933.31
Other cases Matters in dispute/under appeal # 99.08 100,08
1,870.01 1,768.48

Remarks:

(i) The management is of the opinion that, bascd on issues decided in the ealier years and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect to tax wnatters, as given above will be in favour of the Group and also will not have material adverse effect to the financial
position of the Group.

# Other cases

"I'viangle Jiducation, a franchisce of the Holding Company in Jaipur, had arbitrarily terminated the agreement and stasted a competing business using
the brand of CL Educate. The Holding Company has filed a statement of claim before the sole Arbitrator amounting Rs. 190.00 lacs (March 31,
2020: Rs. 190.00 lacs) against triangle education. Triangle Education also filed a counter ciaim against the Holding Company amounting Rs. 32.06
lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 32.06 lacs). The Sole arbitrator has passed the final order partially in favour of the Tlolding Company. The [olding
Company is planning to chalienge the said orders to next appellate authority.

A student, has filled a case against the ITolding Company for refund of fees amounting Rs. 6.20 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 6.20 lacs) on the ground
that he paid fees to Brlliant I'itorials considering the fact that the Holding Company has a tic-up with Brilliant Tutorial which was subsequently
called off by the Holding Company. The matter was tixed for final argument on April 20, 2020 but due to Covid 19, date of argument shifted to next
available slot, ’

The Director of Industries and Commerce cum Chairman MSIE- Chandigarh has sent a notice amounting Rs. 12.31 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs.1231
lacs including interest of Rs. 3.30 lacs) on behalf of Reivera Fabricators regarding non payment of dues on account of uniforms supplicd to Indus
World Schools. The Holding Company has preferred an appeal against the same and the matter was fixed for final arggument on April 15, 2021 but
due to Covid-19 date of argument is shifted to nextavailable slot.

Bawadia kala shikisha samiti, a lessor has filed 2 case against the Holding Company for recovery of rent /arrears amounting Ks.46.88 Lacs for non
payment of rent, Holding Company engaged a local lawyer who will filed necessary application to transler the case fo New Delli as the rent
agreement have arbitration clause, which will be decided in new Delhi. The ratter is fixed for final argument on June 17, 2021.

Ritesh Manchanda, a student has filed a case against the Holding Company citing deficiency of services provided amounting to Re. 1.63 lacs (March
31, 2020: Rs. 1.63 lacs). The case is pending at consumer court, Chandigarh.

Apact from those disclosed above, the Group has certain ongoing litigations involving customers, vendors and employces. Based on legal advice or'in
house legal team, the management believes that no mraterial liability will devolve on the Gioup in respect of these litigarions.

Other litigations

In the financial year 2009-10, the Holding Company had given a franchisee to Ms Monica Oli in the name of Comprehensive Liducation and 1T
"I'raining Institute to provide test preparation services in Dubai (UAT). In the financial year 2012-13, the Holding Company had terminated the
franchise agreement on account of non-recovery of fees collected by the franciisee from students. At the time of the cancellation of agreement the
total amount of receivables from and payable to Ms Monica Oli were AED 1,019,842 (Rs. 150.88 lacs) and ATD 261,318 (Rs. 38.66 lacs) respecuvely.
The Holding Company had preferred acbitration in the matter and the Hon'ble Arbitrator has passed an award amounting AED 2,063,267
(equivalent to Rs. 351.37 lacs) in favour of the Holding Company including damages. The Holding Company had obtained the necessary execution
documents from the Delki High Court and sent these documents through the Indian Embassy for depositing in the Dubai Courts for execution. Due
to the onset of the global pandemic COVID-19, courts in Dubai have been shut since l'(.l)ruary 2020, This has caused’a tt.mp()rny dc,l.w in
proceedings with the matter to be taken up once the courts reopen.
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The Holding Company has filed legal cases against certain debtors for recovery of outstanding receivables amounting Rs 136.34 lacs (March 31, 2020:
Rs 136.34 lacs). 'I'he Holding Company is of the view that all such balances are fully recoverable and no provision is required. Further, the Tolding
Company has also filed cases against certain parties for recovery of damages arising from fraudulent use of Holding Company’s brand name,
violation of terms and conditions of employment etc, amounting Rs 728.12 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 728.12). The amount likely to be realised, in all
these cases, is currently not ascertainable but the Holding Company, based on discussion with concerned lawyers and the proceedings of the cases is
hopeful that there would not be any adverse impact on the financial position, and the realisation would be more than the outstanding amount. The
Holding Company has recorded all expenses pertaining to legal and professional charges in respect of all such cases.

Leases

During 2019-20 Group has applied Ind AS 116 with the date of initial application of April 1, 2019. As a result, the Group has changed its accounting
policy for lease contracts (Refer note 2(xi)). The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-use assets and related
lease liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low value or having a lease term of less than 12 months.
The Group applied Ind-AS 116, leases using the modified retrospective approach.

Group as "Lessee"
The Group has significant leasing agreements in respect of operating leases for its various office premises and godowns. These lease arrangements
are for a period between 12 months to 143 months and include both cancellable and non-cancellable leases.

Lease liabilities

The movement in lease liabilities are as follows :

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening Balance 883.99 1,139.56
Reclassified on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 2 111.92
Finance cost accrued during the period 40.84 122.03
Payment of lease liabilities (618.94) (489.52)
Reversal on account of modification/termination of lease (44.65) -
Closing Balance 261.24 883,99
Non-current Lease liabilities 146.00 448.25
Current Lease liabilities 115.24 435.74
The details of the contractual maturitics of lease liabilities are as follows :

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2021

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than onc year 129.52 14.28 T 11524
Later than one year and not later than five years 162.88 16.88 146.00
Later than five years - - -
Total 292.40 3116 261.24
Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non As on March 31, 2020

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: Lease Payments Finance Charges Net present Value
Not later than one year 479.79 44.05 435.74
Later than one year and not later than five years 471.00 55.93 415.07
Later than five years 37.93 4.75 33.18
Total 988.72 104.73 883.99

For disclosures in respect of Right-of-use assets, refer note 4

Short term lease

‘The company used the following practical expedient when applying Ind AS-116, leases.
- Applicd the exemptions not to recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for lease with less than 12 months of term lease.
- Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or tesminate of lease.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Txpenses relating to short term leases (included in other expense) 323.65 455.05

Group as a lessor
‘I'ne Group has given its premises on cancellable operating lease to one of its franchise.
Rental income recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year amounting Rs 11.10 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 26.48 lacs).

.
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Employee benefits
The Group conttibutes 1o the following post-cmployment defined benefit plans in India.

Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group makes contributions, determined as a specificd percentage of employee salaries, in respect of qualifying cmployees towards provident fund and
state insurance, which are defined contribution plans. ‘The Group has no abligations other than to make the specified contributions. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Employers contribution to provident fund 181.75 215.79
Employers contribution to state insurance 4.82 5.67

Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity :

The Group operates a post-cmployment defined henefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive hal month's salary for cach year of
completed service at the tine of retirement/exit. 'The Group contributes to a trust set up by the Group which further contributes to a policy taken from the
Life Insurance Corporation of Tndia. The present vaiue of obligation is determined based on actuatial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognize each period of service as giving rise to additional employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table scts out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recogrised in the Group’s
financial statcments as at balance sheet date: ’

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Net defined benefit

(asset)/liability

Gratuity (partly funded) 358.43 360.55
' Total employee benefit liabilitics 358,43 360.55

Non-current : ! ; : 353.01 354.73

Current ' ! ' 542 5.82

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components:

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Defined benefit  Fair value of Net defined Defined Fair value of Net defined
obligation plan assets benefit benefit plan assets benefit
(asset)/ liability obligation (asset)/ liability
Balance at the buginning of the year 383.62 (23.07) 360.55 341.64 (15.65) 325.99
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost €0.42 - 60.42 75.68 c- 75.68
Tnterest cost (income) 2297 (0.25) 272 26.08 (1.22; 24.86
83.39 (0.25) 83.14 101.76 (1.22) 100.54
Included in OCI
Remeasurements loss (gain)
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from: ,
- financial assuraptions ' a3y 0.08 (1.31) (43.13) ; #3.13)
- demographic adjnstment - - - (0.08) . (0.08)
- experience adjustment (13.35) - (13.35) (0.23) - 0.23
Return on plan assets (4.40) (2.41) (6.81) " (4.49) (+.49)
(19.14) (2.33) (21.47) (43.44) (4.49) (47.93)
Other
Not consvidered in last year
Contributions paid by the employer - (59.81) (59.81) - (16.05) (16.05)
Fund management charges - 0.96) 0.96) - (2.00) (2.00)
Benefits paid + (58.25) 55.24 (3.02) (16.34) 16.34 -
: (58.26) (5.53) (63.79) (16.34) (L71) (18.05)
Balauce at the end of the vear 389.61 (31.18) 358.43 383.62 (23.07) 36055
:‘1\ | \ N4
A
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Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss Year ended Year ended
+ IMarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Service cost N . 60.42 . 75.08
Net interest cost 22.72 24.86
83.14 100.54

Plan assets

The plan assets of the Group are managed by Life Insutance Corporaticn of India through a trust managed by the Group in terms of an insurance policy taken
to fund obligations of the Group with respeet to its gratuity plan. ‘The categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets is based on information
provided by Tife Insurance Corporation of Tndia with respect to its investment pattern for group gratuity fund for investments managed in total for several

other companies.
Year ended Year ended
Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. Funds Managed by Insuter (investment with insurer) 100.00% 100.00%

. i
Actuarial assumptions

Economic assumptions ) )
"T'he principal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate, The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the

accounting date with a term that matches that of Nabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, seniority, promotion and Gther relevan factors
on long tera basis. Valuation azumptions 2re as follows which have been sclected by the group.

Year ended Year euded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate . ) 6.76%-6.79% 6.76%
Lixpected rate of future salary increzse 5.00%-8.00% 5.00% 8.00%
Demographic assumptions
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Retirement age (years) 58.00 ) 58,00
Mortality rates inclisive of provision for disability 100% of LALM (2012-14)
Ages ] Withdrawal rate (%)
: ) FExternal/Taternal
Upto 30 years . 2.32/1.22-3.00%  252/1.22-3.00%
From 31 to W years o _ ' . 177/090-200%  1.77/0.90-2.00%
Above 44 years 0.14/0.06-1.60%  0.14/0.06-1.00%

Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuatial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have alfected the
defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Sensitivity due to mortality and withdrawls are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivity as t rate of inflation, rate of increase of
pensions in payament, 1ace of increase of pensions before retitement & life expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
. Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Liscount rate (5% movement) (25.92) 26.30 +(25.67) 28.33
Expected zate of future salary increase {0.5% movement) 2439 (22.26) 26,92 . (?4.53)

Description of dsk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time, As such Group is exposed to various risks as follow

A) Salary increases- Actual salazy increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Tncrease in salary increese rate assumption in future valuations will also increase the
liability.

13 Investment risk — 1f Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount taze assumed at the last
valuation date can impact the liability.

() Discoun: rate: Reduction in discoant 1ate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

D) Mortality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilitics.

E) Withdrawals = Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withd=awals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact
Plan’s liability.

Expected maturity analysis of the defined bencfit plans in future ycars ' ; ;

Duration of defined benefit obligation As at Asat .

v : March 31,2021 March 31, 202
1ess than 1 year s ' - 541 5,89
Between 1-2 years 27.41 o 6.31
Between 2-5 years ' . 49.19 55.98
Over 5 years : ’ ' ' 307.60 315.44
Total 389.61 5 383.62

[y
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Lxpected contributions to post-employment benefit plans for the following year is Re. 104.87 lacs. (March 31, 2020: Rs. 129.77)
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 9.44-30.21 years (Macch 31, 2020: 17.74-30.88 years).

Other long-term employce benefits: 5

The Qrc:up provides for compensated absences to its employecs. The employees can carry-forward a pordon of the unutilised actrued compensated abscnces
and utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly
within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized whoily within twelve
months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a long-term employee benefit. i

"T'he present value obligation in respect of earned leave is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Mcthod, which recognises
cach period of service as giving risc to additionsl wait of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up-the final obligations. The
summarised positions of various defined benefits are as under:

Related parties
In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on Related Party Disclosures, the names of the related paries where control exists and/or with whom
transactions have taken place during the year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by the management are:

Name and description of relationship of the related party

Associate companies Three Sixty One Degrec Minds Consulting Private Ltd
B&S Strategy Services Private Limited*
* Nat an associate as at March 31, 2021 (refer note 61)

Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists Career Launcher Employee Group Gratuity Trust
CL Media Employee Gratuity Trust

Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Key managerial personncel (IKMP) Mr. Satya Narayanan R (Chairman and Exccutive Director)
Mr. Gautam Puri (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Nikhil Mahajan (Lixecutive Director and Group CEO Enterprise Busiress)
M., Viraj T'yagi (Nt-Jn-L"..\'ecuti\’e Non Independent Director) (upto November 02, 2020)
Ms. Madhumita Ganguli (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Girish Shivani (Non-Executive Independent Director)
Mr. Piyush Sharma (Non-Executive Independent Director) (w.c.f. July 17, 2020)
Mr. Sushil kumar Roongta (Non-lixecutive Non-Independent Director)
Mr. Sanjay Tapriya (Non-Ixecutive Independent Director) (w.e.f. Ocrober 24, 2019)

Enterprises in which KMP and their Career Launcher liducation Foundation, India
relatives are able to exercise Bilakes Consulting Private Limited, India
Carcer Launces Foundaion
CLER-ADP
Relatives of KMP . Mr. R Sreenivasan

Mt. Shiva Kumar Ramachandran

Transactions during the year: ) - _ Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 34, 2020

Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able w exercise significant influence

Repayment of loans
- Career Launcher Education Foundation g 210,02

Loan/ advance given
- Career Launcher Education Foundation - 14.80

Reimbursement of ¢cxpense from related parties
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited . 0.24 &

Interim Dividend paid:
- Bilakes Consulting Private Liritcd _ 12,55

Amount paid towards CSR expenses
- Career Launcher l'oundation ’ 50.00 v <

Employees' benefit trusts, where control exists
Miscellaneous Income
- CL Media employee Gratuity Trust 017 0.72
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c Key management personnel (KMP) and their refatives
i Short term employee benefits:

- Mr. Gautam Puri

- Mr. Satya Narayanan R.

- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan

- Mr. R Sreenivasan

- Mr. Shiva kumar Ramachandran

ii  Postemployment benefits:
- Mr.Gautam Puri
- Mr. Satya Marayanan R
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan

iii ~ Otherlong term benefits
- Mr.Gautam Puri
- Mr. Satya Narayanan K
= Mg, Nikhil Mzhajan

iv.  Commission to non-executive Directors
- Mr. Viraj T'yag:
- Mrs. Madhumita Ganguli
- Mr. Girish Shivani
- Mr. Sanjay T'apariya
- Mr. Piyusk Sharma
- Mr. Sushil kumar Roongt

v Interim dividend paid:
- Mr. Satya Narayanan .R
- Mr.Gautam Puri
- Me. Nikhil Mahajan
- Mr. R Sreenivasan
- Mr. R Shivakumar.

C. Related party balances as at the year end:

a  Enterprises in which KMP and their relatives are able to exescise significant influcnce
i Current loans

- Career Lanncher,Educaton Foundation

- CLEF - AP

i Capital advance
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited

iii  Interest accrucd but not due on loans given
- Career Launcher Education Foundation

iv  Other receivables
- Career Launcher Education Foundation

v Other advances
- Bilakes Consulting Private Limited

vi Guarantecs received :
- Bitakes Consulting Private.Limited

b Key management personnel (KMP)

i Short term employce benefits payable:
- Mr.Gautam Puri
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R’
- Mr. Ni'hil Mahajan

Year ended

Yearended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
53.43 46.81
53.43 51.87
62.77 69.47
22.83 21.83
22.83 21.83

1.07 1.37

0.68 .16

.63 1.13

1.36 10,57

$.64 9.32

17.49 1.32

0.40 279

1.40 3.09

3.10 253
1.90

040 -

- 3.09

- 2298

- 22,746

- 030

- 3.50

- 3.50

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1219.77 121977

40.71 40.71

16.00 16.00

34.79 3479
091

61.!]7 60.82

457.58 457.58

27.21 43.23

24.28 45.74

11.08 42,96

\(¢
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Related party balances as at the yeur end: (continued from previous page)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 Mazch 31, 2020

Post employment benefits payable:

- Mr.Gautam Puri 17.82 17.74
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 12.79 15.10
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 12.09 1140

Other long term benefits payable:

- Mr.Gautam Puri 34.09 33.33
- Mr. Satya Narayanan R 36.78 32.14
- Mr. Nikhil Mahajan 40.98 23.49
Note:

Apart from above, Direcrors of the Holding Company ie Mr. Satya Narayan R, Mr. Gautam Furi and Mr. Nikhil Mahajan have given pessenal guarantees
agninst loan and overdratt fazilities, the balance ainount of loans guaranteed are Rs. 3,553.72 lacs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 4,124.10 lacs)

During the current year, the Group:has incorporated a Secion 8 comprny Carcer Launcher Foundation which has not Leen considered for consolidation
purposes in accordanze with applicable In AS.

_ Terms and conditivns of transactions with the related parties

i. During the year ended March 31, 2021 the Group has written-off Loans and Advances to Career Launcher Bducation Foundation of Rs. Nil (FY 2019-20:
Rs. 251.31). urther, during the year no interest was chargad in respect of loans due from Cateer Launcher Education Foundatien.
ii. Unless otherwise stated, the transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and are at market

value.
Corporate Social Responsibility
As per Scction 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with guidelines issucd by Department of Public Enterprises, the Group is required to spend, in every

tinancial year, at least two per cent of the average net profits of the Group made during the three immediately preceding financial years in accordice with its
CSR Policy. The details of CSR expenses tor the yzar ace as under:

. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars

A. Amount required to be spent during the year B . 7 27.69 31.48
B. Shortfall amount of previous year | © O 160.93 133.85
C. Total (A+B) ik = 188.62 165.33

. Amount spent during toe year on-

- Consvructions/acquisition of any B :

asset

- On purposes other than above 90,94 4.40
- from identified activities - 5
Total T ‘ - ; 90.94 340
Shortfall amount carried forward to uext yea* 12,11 160.93
Excess carried forward to next year® (14.43) 5 .

#pertains o different entitics “within the Group and hence has not been set-off against each other. The respective eatity plans to speit the shortfall in
accordance with the provision of the Act.

In terms of the clause %2 of chapter V micro, small and Medium enterprises deve'opment Act 2006 (MSMEDD act 2006), the disclosure of payments duc o any
supplier arz as follows: '

‘ As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end -

of each accounting period-included in

Principal amount due to any supplicr 944,09 £02.68
Interest duc on above 0.20 0.49
"I'he amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 20006 along - -

with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during cach

accounting period -

The amount of interest due and payable for the perivd of delay in maling payment (which have - -
Leen paid bur beyond the- appoinument day during the period) but without adding the interest

specified under the MSMED Act, 2006. -

The amouat of interest accraed and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting period . GO o RSN

[
v
(]

The amnount of further mterest remaining due 2nd payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise fur the purpose of /.
disallowance as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.
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55 The Group has in the past undertaken various Central and State Government / Agencies, projects in the education / skill development scctor. Most of these

56

projects are complete, however the dues from the concerned department / agency has not been realized mainly on account of delays and long process. The
details of such vocatioual trade receivables which are outstanding for a considerable period of time are given below. In the opinion of the management it has
made the necessary provision, wherever required and such balances are fully recoverable. The details of amount recoverable are as under and r=fer note 62 for

expected credit loss.

Vocational trade receivables ’ Total Amount Amount o/s. | Expected Credit| Amount of write off
= for more than 3| Loss (ECL)
years (out of Provision on
total amount) outstanding
As at March 31, 2021 357.59 357.59 23.44 1,450.00
As at March 31, 2020 1,807.59 1,807.59 381.15 1,025.00

Share based payments
Description of share-based payment arrangements

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Dircctors at its meeting on March 6, 2008 and the Special Resolution passed by the members in the LGM
held on March 31, 2008, the Holding Company introduced “Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008” which provides for the issue of 250,000
equity shares to employecs of the [Tolding Company and its subsidiaries. All the above options granted are planned to be settled in equity at the time of exercise
and have maximum vesting period of 3 years from the date of respective grants, unless otherwise stated in the grant letter. As on March 31, 2021 and March
31, 2020 the Holding Company had 167,525 and 167,525 number of options that can be granted under the scheme respectively. N

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 28, 2014 and special resolution passed by the members i the
Extraordinary general meeting held on May 29, 2014, the Holding Company renewed "Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008” for a further
period of one year i.e. from April 1, 2014 upto March 31, 2015 by Board and from May 30, 2014 upto May 29, 2015 by shareholders respectively. lurther,
pursuant to resolution passed by Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 11, 2014 and special resolution passed by the members in its Annual
General Meeting held on September 5, 2014 adopted the amended and extended "Amended Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2008 the same is
valid for further perdod of 3 years. Further, pursuant to resolution passed by Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 29, 2016 and special resolution
passed by the members in its Extraordinary General Meeting held on March 22, 2016 adopted "Amended and Restated Carcer Launcher Employee Stock
Options Plan 20147, Further, pursuant to resolution passed by the Members in the Annual General Meeting held on August 24, 2017, the [Tolding Company
ratified and renewed the "Amended and Restated Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 20147 for further period of 1 year ie. from Septetaber 5,
2017 upto September 4, 2018, The Holding Company in it's 22nd Annual General Meeting held on August 7, 2018, has ratified and renewed the "Amended
and Restated Career Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2014 for further period of 3 year i.e. from September 5, 2018 To September 5, 2021.

“The Holding Company has "Amended and Restated Carccr Launcher Employee Stock Options Plan 2014 (CL ESODP -2014)” which provides for the issue of
250,000 stock options to dircctors and employees of the Iolding Company and its subsidiary companics. The plan entitles directors and employees to purchase
equity shares in the Holding Company at the stipulated exercise price, subject to compliance with vesting conditions. The vesting period for the shate options is
3 yeass from the grant date, unless otherwise stated in the grant letter. All exercised options shall be settled by physical/demat delivery of equity shares. As per
the plan holders of vesting options are entitle to purchase one equity share for each option. 'Till date 312,468 (March 31, 2020: 312,468) stock options have
been granted under this scheme.

Note: Although a total of 250,000 options were avzilable to be granted, these include grants that had been forfeited/lapsed, and pooled back, and granted
again. At no point of time did the total number of options granted under the plan exceed 250,000. During the previous year employees had voluntory
surrendered their stock option.

No options were granted during the year.

Details of options outstanding at the year end with the range of exercise price and weighted average remaining contractual life:

Employees entitled No. of options Vesting conditions Weighted Contractual life of options (in year)
March 31, 2021 NIL 3 years' service from the grant date -
March 31, 2020 NIL 3 years' service from the grant aate -

(This space has been intentionally left blank) [ A ‘ ‘; .‘l ,I 4 i ,; |}



CL Educate Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amonnis are in Rupees laes, 1mless othernise stated)

b.  Reconciliation of outstanding share options:

The number and weighetd-average exercise prices of share options under the share option plans are as follows:

ESOP to person other than directors of the Group

Year ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2020

Weighted Average Number of
exercise price per options
share option

Weighted
Average exercise
price per share

Number of options

OQutstanding at the beginning of -
Granted during the year -
Exercised during the year <
Torfeited during the year -
Lxpired during the year* =

Qutstanding at the end of the year -

Vested during the year

Exercisable during the year

option
430.00 44,000
430.00 44,000
430.00 #
430.00 8,750
430.00 3,000

*includes 41,000 shares options voluntarily surrendered during the year ended March 31, 2020,

¢.  Fair value of options granted:

No options were granted during the year. The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes Model. Expected volatility has been determined

using historical fluctvation in share issue prices of the Group.

Particulars

Dividend yicld

Expected volatility (Yo)*

Risk-frec interest rate (%o)

Weighted average share price (in Rs.)

Lixercise price (in Rs.)

Carrying amount of liability-included in employee benefit obligations

d.  Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

"'otal expenses arising from share-based payment transactions recognised in profit or loss as part of employee benefit expense were as follows:

Share based payment (income)/expenses

Employee option plan

Total employee share-based payment (income)/expenses

(This space has been intentionally lff blank) / A

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
= 7.69%
= 590.00
- 210-430
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
= 2.16
- 2.16
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57 Disposal group - Assets held for sale

Particular As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment (refer note A and B below) 3,468.45 2,922.29
Other current assets (refer note A below) 0.66 1.02
Total Assets 3,469.11 2,923.31
Noics:

A On March 16. 2017, the Group entered into a Business ‘T'ransfer Agreement with 1-Take Care Privare Limited (the “Buyer)) to sell its Infrastrecture Services

business (the “Assets™ on the slump sale basis. The proposed sale of business is consistent with the Group’s long-term strategy -0 discontinue its K-12
busiziess. As on date, the transaction is pending closuse as the Buyer has not been able to arrange the requisite funds (o close the transactions, The Management
is taking appropriate action to ensure that its rights and interests wre protected. Also, the Management is in parallel discussions with other pacties to locate an
alternate buyer to give effect to the dispesal of the Assets. As the delay is caused by the events and circumstances beyond the Group’s control and that the
l‘v‘[:-mugcmcnt remains committed to its plan to sell the Assets and the Group continues to disclose such Assets as "Disposal group-Assets held for sale” in
accordance with Ind AS-105 "MNon-Curient Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations',

The following statement shows the revenue and expenses of the business subjzct to slump sale:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue - 112.50
Other income 17127 13.37
Other expenses 0.89 6.95
Ioss from discontinued operations before tax 16.23 118,92
Inéomc—tax expenses - ) . : - - .
Loss from discontinued opetations after tax 16.23 - . 118.92

As at March 31, 2021, the cartying value of the Property, plant*and equipment and other assets arc listed below. The process of selling the said listed assets
expected to be completed on Maich 31, 2022 i .

Particular ‘ Auat Assat

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Pioperty, plant and equipment Land and building at Indore and Raipur) 2,922.29 2,922.29
Other current asscts - ) g 0.66 1.02
Total assets 2,922.95 2,923.31
The net cash flows attributable to the business subject to slump sale are stated below:-

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Operating activitics = 14.50
Investing activities : - "
Financing activitics i - -

During the curent year, the Group has classified freebold land amounting Rs. 518.65 lacs and Building amounting to Rs. 27.51 lacs located at Faridabad, as
assets held for sale. On July 22, 2020, the Group entered into an agreement for sale of its property situated at Faridabad, for which the total amount of
consideration is Rs. 750.00 lacs out of which Rs. 24.75 lacs has been received as an advance. The carrying amount of the nor-current asset wiil be recovered
principally, through a sale transaction rather than through a continuous use. ‘The transaction is expected to be complete prior to March 31, 2022, Thus the Group
is disclosing such assets as assets held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 "Non-Current assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”. The carrying
value of asset held for sale as on the date of agreement does not exceed the fair value less cost to sale and hence there is no impairinent loss to be recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Pacticular Py, p

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Property, plant and equipment (Land and building at Faridabad) : 546.16 - N
Total Assets 546.16 -

- (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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58 Operating segments

A. Basis for Segmentation
Segment information is presented in vespect of the Group's key operating segments. ‘The operating segments are based on the Group’s raanagement and nternal reporting
staucture. The Chiet’ Opesating Decision Maker ("CODM") identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, rature or risks and returns and the inesnal ocganisation
and management structure. ‘The aperating segments aze the scgments for which scparate financial information is available and for which operating profit/loss amounts are
evaluated regulacly All operating segments’ operating resalts are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors to make decisions about resousces to be allocated to the segments

and assess their perfornance

The 'Board of Directors' have been identifica as the CODM, since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the preparation and execution of business plan, preparation of
budget, planning, expansion, alliance, joint veature, metger and acquisition, and expansion of any facility.

Previously, the consumer business comptised of "Consumer Test Prep” and “Consumer Publishing” as the only reportable segments, Dunng this financial year, based on the
increasing growth and focus on Digital delivery of secvices and the consequent changes to the mture of internal reporting provided to the CODM, the management has reass2ssed
the Holding Company's segments. Accordingly, Consumer Test Prep scgment has been reclassified into “Partner” and “Digital”. “Partner” segment includes the busmess
generated and serviced through our Business Pastners (Franchisees), whilst our “Digital” segment includes services rendered through the digital / online mode and offline
counsell:ng-cum-service centres run by the company. Accordingly, segment infarmation provided in these consolidated financial statements is based on such operating segments
as described above. Segment dutz for the prior period presented for compacative purposes has been restated to reflect the newly reportable seginencs. The reportable sepments
represent: ' . i

Reportable scgments . B Operations
a) Partner This mainly includes the business generated and scrvices through our Business Partners (Franchisees),
1) Digital - : This mainly includes business gencrated and services rendered through a combination of a digil / online channel and

offline point of sale counselling.cuni-service centres run by the Group.

) Consumer publishing - “rhis mainly includes publishing and sale of educational books related and third parties.
d) Enterpise corporate - ) The Giovp provides integrared business marketing and sales service like managed mumpower, training, event

* managen.ent, customer engagement, macketing communication and digstal markcting services for corporates to conduct
very lazge conferences and exhibitions.

¢) Enterprisc institutional The Group offers integrated business advisory, research incubation and outreach support services to educatioaal
instituees and universides across India,
f) Others (Incl Vocational and K12) | The Group provides soft skills, infrastructure facilities and other support scrvices to schools and senior secondagy

studies and specific projects undertaken (including government projects).

B. Information about reportable segments )
Segment asscte, segment liabilities and Segment profitand loss are measured in the same way as in <he financial statements.
Information regarding the results of cach reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit (before tax), as included in the inteenil
1 management reports that arc reviewed by the Group's Board of Dircctors. Segmient profit is used to measure performance as management believes thar such information is the
most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entizies that operate within these industries. Inter-segmenc pricing, if any, is determined ou an rm's

length basis.

: s Reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2021 Partner Digital Consumer Enterprise  © Enterprise Other segment - Total
8.8 1w publishing corporate - institutional i :
Segment revenue 543273 500007 (299.66) 756210 — 8450 : 18,1994
Revenue from external customers 3,432.73 ° 5,000.07 -(399.66) - 7,562.10 .845.70 = 18,149,91
Sepment results 996.47 40297 (289.04) 347.90 - (575.62) © (1,342.67) {236.99)
Segment assels 4,361.50 341934 3,587.41 6,552.79 2,863.11 97404 . 21,73819
Segment liabilities 1,643.60 1,826.39 - 403.23 2,191.01 463.81 682.69 7,210.73
' S : Reportable segment
Year ended March 31, 2020 Partner Digital Consumer Enterprise -Enterprise Other segment Total
iy publishing corporate institutional
Segment reveaue . 10,396.55 7,062.03 (156.728) "11,535.06 2,001.78 29.19 30,868.33
Revenue from external customers 10,396.55 7,062.03 (156.28) 11,535.06 2,001.78 29.19 30,568.33
Segment results _ 1,611.85 (638.40) ©757) . 170.98 510.02 {1,736.50) (139.62)
Segment assets 5 4,821.80 4,772'3__ 5,382.07 7,121.86 3,005.69 1,675.43 - 26,781.20
Scgment liabilities : 7,594.86 285255 579.21° 3,108.57 1,035.78 1402.66 11,573.27
C. Reconciliations of information on reportable segments , Year ended Year ended
: . March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
i Revenues B ) )
TPactaer ’ o = 542273 10,396.55
Digital o ’ : 5,009.0 706203
Consumer publishing . (399.66) (156.28)
Enterprise corporate ’ . - 7,562.10 H,533.05
Fnterprise institutional ’ : : 845.70 201,78
Other segment ) ' - 29.19
Total revenues 18,419.94 31,868.33
i Profit before tax = -
Total loss before tax for reporable segmenes . 226.99) (139.62)
Other income ) : 959.67 1,529.70
Unallocated expenses: .
-Finance cost . . 563.11 830.96
-Other expenses . AL i i 1,614.47 1,922.04
Loss before share of loss of equity accounted investees, exceprional items and tix (1,474.90) (1,362,92)
Less: Bxceptional items N - 4,150,05
Loss of associates accounted for using equity methad (1,174.90) (5,512.97)
Share of net loss of associates accounted for using the equity method % (-.94) (14.71)
Loss before tax (1,479.84) (5,527.608)
Tax expense (281.57) ' {102.96)
Loss after tax (1,198.27) (5,421:12)
=/ /
{ f
| {
\ I‘“ ] \\‘
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Discontinued Operations

Profit from discontinued operation before tax

Tax expense

Profit from discontinued operation

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operation
Incomie tax relating to above

Remeasurerent of defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to above

‘Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the vear

iii  Assets

Partner

Digiwal

Consumcr publishing
Cnterprise corporate
Linterprise institutional
Other segiment
Unallocated amounts
‘Total assets

iv  Liabilitics

Partner

Digital

Consumer publishing

Enterprise corporate

Enterprise institutional ¥
Other segment

Unallocated amounts

Total liabilities

v Other material iteins

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
16.23 118.92
16.23 118.92
37.34 975
(9.40) @47)
2147 47.93
(5.38) (12.32)
44.03 42.89
(L,138.01) (5,262.91)
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4,361.50 482180
341934 4,773.45
3,587.41 5,382.97
6,552.79 7.121.86
2,863.11 3,005.6
97404 1,675.43
15,928.53 15,36-+.67
37,686.72 42,145.87
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1,643.60 2,594.86
1,826.39 285233
403.23 579.27
2,191.01 3,108.37
463.81 1,035.78
682.69 T 1,402.66
3,247.19 2,206.83
13,780.10

10,457.92

Year ended March 31, 2021 Interest Interest expense  Depreciation and Capital expenditure
revenue amortisation expense during the year
Partner - - 104.98 10.60
Digital - - 421.18 42742
Consumer publishing = - 46.64 0.27
Enterprise corporate - - 13049 45,87
Enterprise mstitutional - - - E
Other segment - - 1.06 -
Unallocable 127.31 563.11 130.82 418.65
Total 127.31 563.11 835.17 902.81
Year ended March 31, 2020 Interest Interest expense  Depreciation and Capital expenditure
revenue amortisation during the year
Partner - - 228.83 595.61
Digital E C 793.04 134.91
Consumer publishing = - 8.34 1726
Tnterprise corporate ks * 131 43.18
Enterprise wstitutional = - 22018 4044
Other segment - - 13.59 -
Unallocable 174.01 830.96 130.21 14348
Total 174.01 830.96 1,401.50 974.88

D. Geographic information

The geographic information analyses the Group’s revenue and non-current assets by the Group’s country of domicile in other countries. In presenting the geogeaphic information

. - *
segment revenue has been based on the geographic location of customers and segment assets were based on the geographic location of the assets.
‘The Group is domiciled in India. The amount of its revenue from external customers broken down by location of the customers is shown below:

a) Revenues from different geographies

Within India
Outside India

b) Non-current assets*

Within India
Outside Indin

Non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-employment benefit assets

<]

Mnajor customer

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
17,168.84 28,480.59
1,281.10 2,387,714
18,449.94 30,868.33

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
13,548.52 15,235.80
400.42 65.12
13,948.94 15,300.92

During the year ended March 31, 2021, revenue from one customer amounted to Rs. 2,270.60 (March 31, 2020 : 3,357.71) accounting for more than 10 peccent of the Group

evenue.
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59, Fair value measurement and financial instruments
a  Financial instruments — by category and fair values hierarchy
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilties, including theic levels in the fair value hiecarchy.

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FYOCI Amortised cost Tatal Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Non-current

Investments 588.73 - - 588.73 5 - 588.73
Loans - - 98.09 98.09 - z 2
Other financial assets - - 61.71 6171 - = =
Current

Investments 3,852.91 - - 3,852,91 - 3,852.91 &
"I'tade receivables & - 5,247.56 5,247.56 2 = ,
Cash and cash cquivalents - - 1,725.42 1,725.42 - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - 1,239.62 1,239.62 . = «
Loans = = 1,558.34 1,558.34 - . .
Other financial assets - - 639.29 639.29 . - =
Total 4,441.64 = 10,570.03 15,011.67 - 3,852.91 588.73

Financial liabilities
Non-current

Borrowings . - - 566.85 566.85 g 5 5
Lease liability - - 146.00 146,00 = = =
Current

Borrowings = “ 3,276.08 3,276.08 % - =
Lease liabihity & - 115.24 115,24 - - <
‘I'rade payables B - 2,480.14 2,480.14 - = -
Other financial Liabilitics - - 1,321.84 1,321.84 - » =
‘Total . - - 7,906.15 7,906.15 - . -

As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurement using

FVTPL FYOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Non-current

Investments 588.73 - - 588.73 s = 588.73
Loans - - 167.66 167.66 - z =
Other financial assets - - 956.61 956.61 E = s
Current

Investments 3,716.34 - - 3,716.34 - 3.716.34 =
Trade receivables - - 9,279.55 9,279.55 E - =
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,159.28 1,159.28 - = =
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - = 260.02 260.02 - = =
Loans - & 1,550.20 1,550.20 = a -
Other financial assets - - 985.61 985.61 - = =
Total 4,305.07 - 14,358.93 18,664.00 - 3,716.34 588.73
Financial liabilities

Non-current

Borrowings - - 358.37 358.37 « . 358.37
Lease liability = - 448.25 448.25 - = -
Current

Borrowings " - 3,918.08 3,918,08 - - .
Lease liability - - 435.74 435.74 - - -
Trade payables g - 4,066.34 4,066.34 - z -
Other financial liabilities - - 1,361.84 1,361.84 g = .
Tatal - - 10,588.62 10,588.62 E 5 358.37

"I'he Group’s borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of interest, which resets at short intervals. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not
due) approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash cequivalents and other financial assets and labilitics, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term nature. Faie
value of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits {due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting date) and security deposits is smiliar to the carrying value as there is
no significant differences between carrying value and fair value.

"I'here have been no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for the years ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used to value non current financial assets and abilities for whom the fair values have been determined based on present values and the appropriate discount rates
of the Group at cach balance sheet date. "The discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of barrowings of the Group at each balance sheet date.

b Pinancial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk
= Currency rate risk
® Interest rate risk
Risk management framework
The Group's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board of Directors have authorised senior
management o establish the processes and ensure control over risks through the mechanism of propedy defined framework in line with the businesses of the group,

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor risks and adherence to limits.
Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities.
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b. Financial risk management (continued)

(i) Credit risk
“I'he maximum exposure to credit tsks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance Shect.

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
“U'rade receivables 5,247.56 9,279.55
Cash and cash equivalents 1,725.42 1,159.28
Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 1,239.62 260.02
Loans 1,656.43 1,717.86
Other financial asscts 701.00 1,942.22

Credit risk is the disk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and ariscs
principally from the Group’s receivables from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The Gmup’s qredit rﬁg.k is primarily to the amount due from customers. The Group mantains a defined credit policy and monitoss the exposures to these credit
risks on an ongoing basis.

i. Credit risk on loans is limited as the loans are given to other related parties,

ii. Credit risk on cash and cash equivaients is limited as the Group invests in deposits with scheduled commercial banks with high credit ratings assigned by
domestic credit rating agencies.

‘The maximum cxposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is pritnarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are ursecured and are derived from revenue
earned from'cy::lomcrs primarly located in India. The Group does monitor the economic enviorment in which it operaws 2nd the Group manages its Credit risk
thr(;ugh credit approvals, establisking credit limits and-continously monitoring credit worthiness of customers to which the Group grants credit terms in the
normal course of business. )

On adoption of Ind AS 109, the Group uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group establishes an allowance for
impairment that represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. T'he management uses a simplificd approach (e based on lifetime ECL) for
the puipose of impairment loss allowance, the Group estimases amounts based on the business environment in which the Group operates, and management
considers that the trade receivables arc in default (credit impaired) when counter party fails to make payments as per terms of sale/service agreements. However
the Group based upon historical experience determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables.

‘The gross carrying amount of trade reccivables is Rs. 5,517.17 lacs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 10,070.32 lacs). Trade reccivables are gencrally realised within the credit
perind.

"The Group believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more thau 30 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

The Group's exposute to credit risk for trade reccivables are as follows:

: Gross carrying amount
_—_ ) As at Mareh 31, 2021 | As at March 21, 2020
Not Due ! 432.01 587.25
0-90 days past due 1,267.59 3,973.76
90 to 180 days past duc 407.02 1,058.17-
180-365 days 1,389.1 1,601.60
365-730 days 793.23 550.61
More than 730 days 1,228.31 1,998.93
Total 5,517.17 10,070.32
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:
- For the year ended For the year ended

Parti

wrdoituss, March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning 790.77 1,572.83
Lmpairment loss recognised / (reversed) (521.16) (782.06)
Balance at the end 269.61

(This space bas been intentionally kft Mmk)‘ o TR
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b. Financial tisk management (continued)
(ii) Licquidity risk '

Liquidity risk is the sk that the Group will encounter difficuity m meeting the obligations associated with irs financial liabilities thac are setded by delivenmg cash or anotler
financial asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity 15 to ensure, as fac as possible, thar it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its Kabilities when they fall due, under
both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring ungeeeptable losses or nisking damage to the group’s reputation.

‘The Group believes that its liquidity position, mcluding totzl cash (including bank deposits under fien and the anticipated future internally generated funds from operations)
will enable 1t to meet its future known opligations m the ordinary course of business.

Prudent liquidity risk management imphes maintainmg sufficient casl and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of credit facilities to
meet obligations when due. "The Greup's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and fending from group
companies to meet its Tiquidity requirements in the short and long werm.

The Group's liuidiry managemen! process as monitored by managenient, includes the following:
- Day te day funding, managed by menitoring future cash flows to nsure that requirements can be mct.
- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Group’s liguidity position on tne basis of expected cash flows

Exposure to liquity risic
The failowing are the remaming contractual maturies of financia! liabidities at the reporiing dare.

As at Mzrch 31, 2021 ) Carrying Contractual cash flows
armoont Total Less than one | Between one | More than 5 years
year .| yearard five
years :
—
Borrowings
Secured
-From banks .
a) Vehicle loans 48.30 +8.30 16.96 3L -
) terma loans ‘ 616.07 616.67 172.22 4445 -
-From others/financial insutution B
a) Term loan ' 349.28 349.28 250.96 98.22 =
Currznt berrowings . . Po5
Secured 5 .
_Cash credit from banks 3,262.24 3,262.24 3,262.24 -
Unsecured
-From others I S S & .71 13.84 13.84
Trade payables ‘ T 2,480.14 2,480.14 2,480.14 .- .
Lease Liability (current & non current) 261.24 261.24 115.24 146.00 =
Other financial liabilitics o
Unpaid dividend . ' 256 256 2.55 = -
Payable for selling sharcholders 28.06 28.06 28.06 o g
Employee related payables 760.61 760.61 760.61 - =
Advance received on behalf of others 11.33 11.33 11.33
Receipt on behalf of clients 71.88 71.88 71.88 = =
Toral 7,906.15 7,906.15 7,186.01 720.11 -
As at March 31, 2920 Carrying Contractual cash flows
amouat ‘Total Less than one | Between one | More than § years
year year and five
years
Borrowings
Sceured
-From banks
a) Vehide loans 44.31 44.31 i2.85 3146 -
bj Term loans ¥ 293.33 203.33 23333 60.00
-From cthers/ fisancial instimton )
a) ‘l'erm loan 522.04 522.64 256.01 27262
Cusrent borrowings
Secured
-Cash credit from banks 3915.87 3.915.87 3,915.87 = s
Unsecured
<from others 221 221 2.21 & -
Trade payables 4,006.34 4,066.34 4,066.34 % -
Lease Liability {(cuniert & non current) £33.99 883.99 435.74 4 lS.U'I- KXW E
Other financial liabilitics ’
Unpaid dividend 2.56 2.56 256 = -
Refendzble security deposit 5.00 5.00 5.00 & o
Tnterest accrued buf not due on botrowings freri relaied parties 16.13 16.13 16.13
Paveble for selling sharcholders 28.06 28.06 28.06 % z
Employce related payables 795.28 795.28 795.28 £ 5
Receipt on healf of clients 1289 12.89 12.89 2 T .
Total 10,588.61 10,588.61 9,776.27 11216 Bl _3;1,.13‘ '
. . . & PR
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(AN amonnis are in Rupees Jacs, nnless ofhenwise stated)
B. Financial risk management (continued)
iii. Market risk .

Market risk is the risk that the

risk, currency risk
management is to'manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Currency risk

v

fL'ltl.l.rl:. cash ﬂm—vs ofa lmﬂnvcial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate
and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: curtency risk and interest rate risk. The objective of market risk

Currency risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrumeznt will fluctuate because of changes in forcign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to the cffects of

fAuctuation in the prevailing foreign currency
primarily due to exchange rate fAuctuations between the functional cutrency and other currencies from the Company's operating,

Thete are no derivative contracts entered by the Company. Hence. thers is no associated risk.

Exposure to currency risk
"I'he summary of quantitative data abour the Company's exposure to currency risk, as expressed in Indian Rupees,

investing and financing activities.

exchange rates on 1ts financial position and cash flows to the extent of earnings and expenses in foreign currencies. Exposure arises

as at Match 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 arc as below:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021
AED Amount in . SGD Amount in AUD Amount in usD Amount in
INR INR INR INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 24.75 493.69 % - 2.26 44.88 9.05 660.23
Other financial asset 0.93 18.55 E - - = 7.69 409,49
Other bank balances 4.86 96.94 - 2 - & = _
30,54 609.18 - - 2.26 44.88 1672 1,059.72
Financial liabilities
"l1ade payables and other Liabilities 1.35 26.93 - - 5 = 0.68 14974
1.35 26.93 z - - - 0.68 19.74
Net exposure in respect of recognised asscts and 29.19 582.25 4 = 2.26 44.88 16.04 1,009.98
Particulars As at March 31, 2020
AED Amount in SGD * Amount in AUD Amount in USD Amount in
INR INR INR INR
Financial asscts 3
Trade reccivables 3031 62248 0.36 19.08 3.16 . 63.76 1.03 77.58
Other financial asset 0.53 10.88 1.56 82.66 - 7.69 399.49
Other bank balances 5.03 103.31 - - = = _ R
35.87 736.67 192 101.74 3.16 63.76 872 477.07
Financial liabilities
Trade payables and other Liabilities 2.58 52.94 0.06 3.18 w - 0.07 5.27
2.58 52.94 0.06 3.18 - - 0.07 5.27
Net exposure in respect of recognised asscts and 33.29 683.73 1.86 98.56 3.16 63.76 8.65 471,80

Sensitivity analysis ; : -
A reasonably possible strengthening (weakening) of the Indian Rupee against below currencics at March 31,

2021 and March 31, 2020 would have affected the measurement of

Particulars Profit or ioss (in Re, Lacs) Equity, net of tax (in Rs.
Lac)
Strengthening Strengthening | Weakening | Swengthening | Weakening
1% depreciation / appreciation in Indian Rupces
against following foreign currencies:
For the year ended March 31, 2021
AED 5.82 (5.82) 423 (4.23)
AUD 0.45 (0.45) 0.33 0.33)
UsD 10.10 (10.10) 7.34 (7.34)
Total 16.37 (16.37) 11.90 (11.90)
For the year ended March 31, 2020
ALD 6.84 (6.84) 494 4949
SGD 0.99 0.99) 0.71 0.71)
AUD 0.64 (0.64) 0.46 (0.46)
USD 472 (4.72) 34 (3.41)
| Total 13.19 (13.19) 9.52 (9.52)

ABRD: United Arab Iimirates Dirham, SGD: Singapore Dollar, USLY: United States Dollar and AUD. Austrailian Dollar.
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. Financial risk management (continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s main

interest rate risk arises from long-term and short term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

"I'he Group's interest rate risk ariscs majorly from the term loans from banks carrying floating rate of interest. “I'hesc obligations exposes the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Group’s botrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the reporting period arc

as follows:

Variable-rate instruments As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Term loans from banks and others 965.95 815.97
Vehicle loans 48.30 44.31
Cash credit from banks 3,262.24 3,915.87
Total 4,276.49 4,776.15

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) cquity and profit or loss by the

amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

Particulars Profit or loss Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Interest on loans from banks

Tor the year ended March 31, 2021 21.07 (21.07) 15.32 (15.32)
For the year ended March 31, 2020 31.11 (31.11) 22.62 (22.62)
Interest on loans from others

Tor the year ended March 31, 2021 19.50 (19.50) 14.18 (14.18)
For the year ended March 31, 2020 3.93 (3-93) 2.86 (2.86)

Capital Management

For the purpose of the group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity sharc capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders

of the Group.

Management assesses the Group’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure, T'he Group manages the capial structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.

‘I'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may rcturn capital to shareholders, rise new debt or issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which is calculated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable

to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Borrowings 4,283.07 4,772.64
T.ess : Cash and cash cquivalent 1,725.42 1,159.28
Adjusted net debt (A) 2,557.65 3,613.36
‘Total equity (B) 27,216.30 28,338.87
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (A/B) 9.40% 12.75%
Dividends
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Interim dividend for the year ended on March 31, 2021 of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 1) per fully = 141.66
Dividend Distribution "T'ax on interim - 29.11
dividend
Total - 170.77

(This space bas been intentionally left blank)




(b

—

CL Educare Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amorits are in Kipees Jucs, unless othenwise sialed)

Interests in other entities

Subsidiarics

The Group’s subsidiaries at March 31, 2021 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solcly of equity shares that are held direcy

by the group, and the propnrl:'.on of ownership interests heid eguale the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also their

principal place of business.

Name of the Entity Place of Ownership interest held by the | Ownership interest held by non-
business/ group as at controlling interests as at
_countryof  [March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020| March 31, 2021 | Macch 31, 2020
inucorporation
Kestone Integrated Management Services Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% - &
G K Publications Privats Limited Tndia 100.00% 100.00% 5 u
CL Media Private Limited ) -India 100.00% 100.00% - -
Carcer Launcher Education Infrastructure Services Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% = a
Carcer Launcher Infrastructuie Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% - z
Kestone Asia Hub Pte Limited Singapoie 100.00% 100.00% u -
Azcendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00% - u
1CE Gate Lducational Institute Privete Limited India 58.95% 58.95% 41.05% H.05%
CL Educate (Afﬁcn) Lid (w.e.f. Januury 13, 2029 Mauridus 90.00% 90.00% 10.00% 10.60%
Kestone CL US Limited : ; India 100.00% 100.00% I z

Principal activities of group companies

Kestone Integrated Management Secvices Private Limited and Kestone Asia Hub Pte Ltd

Kestone Integrated Management Sers ices Private Limited and Kestone Asia TTub Pre Ltd provides integrated business, marketing and sales scrvices to corporate
customers (including event management), marketing support (including digital matketing support in the form of online marketing initiatives, to support offline
marketing campaigns), customcer engagement. (including andierce generation, lead generation, loyalty and reward programs and contest management), managed

manpower and training scrvices.

G K Pablications Private Limited .
G K Publications Private Limited is currently enguged in the business of distribution of test preparation guides, books and other academic taterial.

CL Media Private Limited '
CL Media Private Limited is currently engaged in the business of content develonment for study material and providing sales & marketing services and research

related services to Institutions and Universitics.

Career Launcher Infrastructure Private Limited ’ :
CL Media Private Limited is currently engaged in the business of publishing study material and books and other academic material.

Career Launcher Education Infrastructure Services Private Limited
The Group provides soft skills, infrastructure facilities and other support services to schools and senior secondary studies and specilic projects underiaken (including

govt projects).

Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited (AKMS)

Accendzre is currently engaged in the business of facilitating educationzl institutions and establishing their institutional credibility, international presence and thovght
leadership by improving their research output i terms of both' the quaity and quantity of rescarch articles published by them. J :

ICE Gate Educational Institute Private Limited
“[his niainly includes test prep coaching examinations like Graduate Aptitude Test in Lingineering/ Indian Lingineering Scrvices.

Kestone CL US
Kewmte GL Asia Hub Pee. Ltd had incorporated a wholly owned subsidiary in USA on March 22, 2018 in the name of Kestone CL US Limited with an abjective to

provide Tntegrated sales and matketing services 1o the corporate and instirutions;in USA.

Associate Companies ‘
Set out below are the associates of the group as nt‘Mm'ch 31,2021 which, in the opinion of the directors, are material to the group.
. u ’ % of ownership interest Carrying amount
Mame of entity lice of Asat Asat Accounting  Asat Asat
business March 31,2021  March 31, 2020 method March 31,2021  March 31, 2029
Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consuh..ing Private Chennai, Indin ~ 4.41% of equity  4.41% of equity Equity 785.17 789.61
Timited i L 3 shares shares ’
Total equity accounted investments 785.17 789,61

Principal activitics of associate entity

th‘-cc::l..\‘tyone.“ chrue. Minds Consulting Prn'mc' Ll.nmcd-. I'he 'C.ovmpm?y prox:ldes learning and education solutions for cotportions, coilleges and universities,

acatemic service providers, and government Lodies in India ard intemationally. The Company offers geaduation/diploma programs, as well as leadership programs
. S A as les programs

to corpbrate Managers.




i,

iii.

CL Educate Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amatnts are in Ragpees hies, snbess atlienn ise stated)

Sigrificant judgement: existence of significant influence

Threesixtyonz Degree Minds Consulting Private Limited- Holding Company have representation on the board. of Threesixtyone Degree Minds Consulting
Private Limited and right to nominate one Director on ihe Board, it also pnr{icipmcs in all significant financial and operating decisions. The group has therefore
determined that it has significant influcnce over this catity, even though it enly holds 4.41% of the voting rights. ¢

*(he Geroup has an agrecment with its associate that the profits of the ussoctate will not be distributed until it obtains the consent of the Group. 'The Group does not
foresee giving snch consent at the reporiing date, The associate had no contingent linbilitics or capital commitments as at 31 March 2021 or 31 March 2020.

Summarised financial information for associates

‘Ihe tables below provide summarised financial information for the assoziate. The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of
the relevant associate and not CI, Educate Limited’s share of those amounts. They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when using the
equity method anc modifications for differences in accounting policies, if any.

Sumimarised balance cheet As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

I'otal carrent assets 1,159.24 1,123.79
“I'atdl non-current asseis ' 250.98 285.49
Total assets . L ) ‘ ' ? 1,410.22 1,109.28
T'otal current liabiliﬁes 497.12 425.56
Total non-current liabilitics 5 ‘ . ) 152.00 125.09
Total liabilities ‘ 649.12 3530.65
Net assets : ' ‘ ’ 76110 - §58.63
Snmmarised statement of profit and loss . Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Revenue ' 378.81 567.17

Interest income 6.38 ~ 5.68
lﬁtércst‘cxpcnsa 34.89 {752
Depreciation and amortisation 123.11 115.29
Tax expense - 0.76
(Loss)/ profit for the year (111.92) Co433
Other comprehensive income : » -
Toual comprehensive income/ (loss) (111.92) 433
Reconciliation to carrying amount of investments As at Asat

March 31,2021  Marcch 31,2020

Investment in assoeiates . 67457 67457
Gain on fair valuation 112.43 11243
(Loss)/ profitafter the period of acquisition @Ls0 - 50.40
Group’s share in the (loss)/ profit since acquisition (1.83) 2.61
Carrying amount of investment in the associate 785.17 789.61
Y A '\.

I \ -\

| Vel ) A}
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. Non-controlling interest (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for the subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the group. The amounts
disclosed for the subsidiary are before inter-Group climinations.

i. ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited

Summarised balanze sheet As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current assets 169.74 292,95
Non-current assets 190.96 228.82
Total assets 360.70 521.77
Current liabilities 313.14 413.73
Non-current liabilities 16.94 42.74
Total liabilities 330.08 456,47
Net assets 32.62 65.30
94 of Non controlling interest 41.05% 41.05%
Accumulated NCI ) 12.50 26.90
Summarised statement of profit and loss A/c Year ended Year er.ded
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue 455.31 1.123.45
[nterest income = _
Tnierest expense 1153 9.00
Depreciation and amortisation -47.97 42,63
Tax expense 281 9.75
(TLoss)/ profit for the year (35.47) 30.03
Other comprehensive income 078 “1.09
Tetal comprehensive income (34. 69). 34.02
]
Profit allocated to NCI : (14.24) 13.9¢
Dividends paid to NCI s
Summarised cash flow Year ended Year ended
. March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Cash flows from operating activities 16.37 8511
Cash flows from investing activitics (44.59) (120.33)
Cash flows from financing activities 20.42 41.15
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (7.80) 5.93

iii. Transactions with nou-controlling interest

‘I'he group had acquircd 50.70% stake in ICEGATE Educational Institute Private Limited on October 31, 2017. On 13 August 2019, the group acquired
an additional 7.15% st‘.?ke & 1.10% on 2 March 2020 for Rs. 76.32 Lacs. Immediately prior to the purchase, the casrying amount of the non-controlling
interests acquired Le. 8.25% NCT was (Rs. 5.54 lacs}. ‘The effect on the equity attributable to the owners of the Group during the year is sumimarised as

follows: .
Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquited . 5.54
Consideration paid to non-controling interests " 76.32
Fixcess of consideration paid recognised in setained earnings within equity - (70.78)

. Other investments in equity shares
' ' Asat As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Unquoted, measured at FVITPL - non trade
8,817 (March 31, 2020: 8,817) fuli) paid up cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach of B&S Strategy Scrvices 585.73 ’ 588.73

Private Limited.
#I'he investment has been measured at fair value through profit and loss using the latcst financial informatiomavailable with the Group.

| R T
| R P i
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Income tax

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Current year
Tax related to prior years ‘

Deferred tax

Current year

"Total tax (reversal) / expense

. Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Items that may be subsequently reclassificd to statement of profit and loss
_ Tncome tax relating to exchange difference on translation of foreign operation

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
- Income tax relating to remeasurcment of defined benefit plans

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Toss before tax from continuing operations
Profit before tax from discontinuing operations
Total loss before tax

T'ax using the Company’s domestic tax rate
‘L'ax effect of:

Non-deductible expenses

Non-taxable income

MAT credit utlised

Deductible expenses

Impact of change in rate of tax

T'ax adjustments relating to earlier years

Carried forward business losses on which deferred tax not considered

Others

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
85.70 164.30
38.32 49.98
124,02 214.28
(405.59) (317.24)
(405.59) (317.24)
(281.57) (102.96)
9.40) (2.47)
(5.38) (12.32)
(14.78) (14.79)
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rate# Amount Rate# Amount
(1,474.90) (5,512.98)
16.23 118.92
27.82% (1,458.67) 217.82% (5,394.06)
(405.80) (1,500.63)
91.33 1,286.74
(46.35) (92.61)
3.46 &
x 4.36
- 198.04
38.32 49.98
(43.09) 4.97
80.54 (53.81)
(281.57) (102,96)

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (2019 Tax Ordinance) provides the group with an option to move to a lower tax rate of 25.17%

accompanicd with immediate expiry of carry forward bal
enjoyed by the Company presently. The Group had reviewed the implications of 201
company of the Holding Company has opted for the n
and the remaining Group will reassess the option to adopt the new tax provision cvery

# includes surcharge

(This space bas been infentionally kfl blank)

ance of Minimum Alternative ‘U'ax (MAT) credit and certain other concessional tax rate benefits
: 9 Tax Ordinance on its tax liability for the year and one subsidiary
ew tax provisions. However, the remaining Group has decided not to opt for the new tax-provisions
year and adjustments, if any, will be considered in due course.
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Movement in deferred tax balances

Deferred Tax Assets

Unabsorbed Tosses

Elimination of inventory profit

Provision for employee benefit

Provision for Obsolescenc of Inventory
Provision for bonus

Provision for sales Incentive

Loss allowance for doubtful debtore

FCTR Impact

Impact of Discontinuing of Sccuirty Deposits

Deferred tax on cguity adjutsment of associate prcfit

Trade payable

Current loans.

Lease liability

Other current linbilitics

Cther current financial liabilities
MAT eredit entitlement

Sub- Total (a)

Deferred Tax Liabilitics

Property, plnt and equipment and intangibles
Goodwill

Right of use.

Other consol adjustment |

Investment in subsidiary and associates
Impact for TR adjustment on Borrowings

Other current asset - Prepaid financial guarantee -

Other cquity- Deemed equity contribution
Provision for absolescence of inventory
Amortsation of prepaid rent
Amortsation of securtiy deposits

Sub- Total (b) .

Net Deferred Tax Asset (a)-(b)

car ended March 31, 2021

Year ended March 31, 2021

As at Recognized in Recognized in OCI As at
March 31, 2020 P&L March 31, 2021
1,130.36 (36.01) - 1,094.35
18875 (188.75) z z
155.50 (20.93) 5.38 139.95
1.67 (18.72) - (17.05)
- 0.01 - 0.01
52.44 10.04 - 62.48
234.95 (177.23) - 57172
0.43 (9.83) 9.4 -
14.61 (14.61) -
0.22 (0.23) - -
.56 (6.62) - (6.606)
118.94 (7.80) - 111.14
240.76 (182.02) - 58.74
- 5.01 z 5.01
63.26 (31.44) - 31.82
302.73 1147 - 303.90
2,505.18 (677.95) 14.78 1,842,01
783.49 (962.59) - (179.10)
7471 34.37 109.08
206.92 (163.31) - 43.61
- 76.36 - 76.36
75.84 (75.84) - -
1.16 (1.16) - -
297 (2.25) - 0.72
10.19 6.74 - 16.93
9.52 4.40 - 1392
. 17.86 0.63 - 18.49
B (0.89) - (0.89)
1,182.66 (1,083.54) - 99,12
1,322.52 405.59

£Thic space bas been intentionally kft blank)
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The Board of Directors of the Holding Company has approved the schemne of arrangement of amalgamation of its subsidiary companies (as mentioned below)
into the Company (“the Scheme”) in its meeting held on November 27, 2018. The scheme has been approved by the National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (“the NSE”) and BSL Limited (“the BSE”). During the previous year 2019-20, an application under regulation 37 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 was filed with the National Company Law “Iribunal (NCIL1), for the proposed amalgamation of Carcer Launcher Education Tnfrastructure and Services
Limited, CL Media Private TLimited, Accendere Knowledge Management Services Private Limited, G.K. Publications Private Limited and Kestone Integrated
Marketing Services Private Limited (“Amalgamating Company”) with CL Educate Limited (“Amalgamated Company”). The Scheme will be effective upon
approval from NCLT, which is pending as on date, predominantly on account of the COVID-19 pandemic. The appointed date as proposed date by the
Company is April 1, 2019. The Holding Company has filed a petition in NCLT to expedite the process of merger. The next heating is scheduled to be held on
July 30, 2021. Pending hearing of NCLT, no adjustment has been taken in the books of accounts.

During the financial year 2017-18, Career Launcher Liducation Infrastructuse and Scrvices Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary ("CLEIS" or the "Whally
Owned Subsidiary/WOS") entered into an agreement to sell its School Business vertical (K-12,Business) to B&S Strategy Services Private Limited (B&S) for a
total consideration of Rs. 4,650.00 lacs comprising Rs. 600.00 lacs payable in cash and remaining Rs. 4,050.00 lacs by way of equity shares in B&S. Presently
the sharcholding in B&S, is 8,817 equity shates of Rs. 10 each, being 44.18% of total equity of B&S. lurther, an overdue amount of Rs. 400.00 lacs is
recoverable from B&S towards cash consideration as per the aforesaid agreement. Nalanda Foundation (Nalanda) is the Trust that runs the K-12 school
business. Trusteeship of the Nalanda was transferred together with the aforesaid sale of schoal business. Over time the admission numbers have declined in
the school and with insufficient cash being generated by the business, the Management does not intend to make further investments. "The situation has been
accentuated by the onset of COVID-19, forcing schools to shut carly and the present Management failing to collect final term fees of FY'20 and for the first
quarter of the new Academic Year. Lurther there are consistent delays on part of B&S Management in providing required financial updates and information
for consolidation. Based on the aforesaid situation, the Group has taken the following steps during the previous year 2019-20:

a. The Group has taken legal advice and initiated legal proceedings before the TTonorable High Court, to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs. 400.00
lacs of the cash consideration. A section 9 petition on the matter of CLILIS vs B&S was heard by Delhi High Court on June 22, 2020 with the Judge appointing
a retired High Court judge as arbitrator to hear the dispute.

b. Based on its assessment of the merits of the case and the opinion of legal counsel taken thercon, the Management is confident of recovering cash
consideration and receivable from Nalanda in full and hence no provision is required or made.

During the financial year 2017-18, Career Launcher Tiducation Infrastructure and Services Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary ("CLEIS" or the "Wholly
Owned Subsidiary/WOS") entered into an agreement to sell its School Business vertical (IK-12,Business) to B&S Strategy Services Private Limited (B&S).
Nalanda Foundation (Nalanda) is the Trust that used to run the K-12 school business on behalf of the Holding company, whercin directors of the holding
company used to hold Trustecship of the Nalanda which was also transferred together with the aforesaid sale of school business to B&S. T'he Company has
balance outstanding as of March 31, 2021 of Rs. 500 lacs from Nalanda with respect to leasing and infrastructure scrvices.

The Group has taken legal advice and initiated legal proceedings before the TTonorable High Coutt, to protect its interests, including recovery of Rs. 500.00
lacs due from Nalanda. Based on its assessment of the merits of the case and the opinion of legal counsel taken thercon, the Management is confident of
recovering the balance reccivable from Nalanda in full and hence no provision is required or made.

“I'he nationwide lockdown dug to spread of COVID-19 and other significant restrictions imposed on the movement had an impact on the sectors/ businesses
that the Group operates. The Management had however, made necessary adjustments to its service and customer acquisition processes, moving to a lasgely
Digital model, thereby minimizing the business impact of the pandemic.

During the current period, the Management has re-evaluated the likely impact of COVID-19 on its business operations, demand for its products/services,
profitability, capital and financial resources, liquidity position, ability to service debt arrangements and financial and non-financial asscts, etc. Basced on the
projected cash flows drawn for the current financial year, the Management has concluded that the company will have sufficient liquidity to continue its
operations in an uninterrupted manner. Also, the Management is of the view that there is no material impact and is confident of recovering the carrying
amount of all the assets. Any possibilitics of delays in collcction ate covered by the Bxpected Credit Loss Model.

Jfor the aforesaid evaluation, the Management has considered internal and external sources of information up to the date of approval of these financial results.
"The actual impact of the pandemic may, however, differ from that estimated as at date of approval of these financial results and the Management will continue
to closely monitor any material changes to future cconomic conditions. ;

“I'he consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 werc approved by board of dircctors on June 24, 2021.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / rearranged as per the current year’s presentation for the purpose of comparability.

As per report of even date.

lior Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP FFor and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants CL Educate Limited
ICAT Firm regjsteation No. A01076N/N500013
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